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We are 

working ever 

more closely 

with customers.  

At the same 

time, we are 

achieving balance 

between global

expansion and 

rationalization.

We reorganized 

the company, 

introduced 

new products 

and took other 

aggressive actions 

to fuel profitable

growth.

We brought 

down 

inventories, 

generated cash 

and reduced 

debt.



The Timken Company, headquartered 

in Canton, Ohio, is a leading international 

manufacturer of highly engineered 

bearings and alloy steels.  It also is 

becoming a leader in providing related 

components and services such as bearing 

refurbishment for the aerospace, 

industrial and railroad industries.  

Its mission is to increase continually 

shareholder value by strengthening its 

leadership position in chosen markets.  

More than 50 plants and 100 sales, design 

and distribution centers in 25 countries 

provide unmatched product quality and 

customer service.

Timken is the world’s largest 

manufacturer of tapered roller bearings 

and mechanical seamless steel tubing.  

The company’s Bearings and Steel 

businesses serve every major manufacturing

industry.  Timken offers a selection of 

inch and metric tapered roller bearings 

exceeding 200 types in more than 

30,000 sizes.  Recent acquisitions enable 

the company to produce and service ball, 

cylindrical and spherical bearings for select

industrial markets.  It ships more than 

one million tons of premium alloy steels 

each year.  For a more detailed description 

of the markets served, see the corporate 

profile on pages 6 and 7.  
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(1) Annual earnings per share do not equal the sum of the individual quarters due to differences in the average number of shares outstanding during the respective periods.
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1999 1998

(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)

Net sales $2,495,034 $ 2,679,841

Income before income taxes 98,991 185,350

Provision for income taxes 36,367 70,813

Net income $ 62,624 $ 114,537

Earnings per share $ 1.01 $ 1.84

Earnings per share - assuming dilution $ 1.01 $ 1.82

Dividends paid per share $ 0.72 $ 0.72
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Net Gross Net Earnings per Share(1) per

1999 Sales Profit Income Basic Diluted Share

(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)

First Quarter $ 625,370 $ 126,559 $ 16,579 $ .27 $ .27 $ .18
Second Quarter 636,099 119,601 12,264 .20 .20 .18
Third Quarter 601,703 116,341 12,442 .20 .20 .18
Fourth Quarter 631,862 130,167 21,339 .35 .35 .18

$ 2,495,034 $ 492,668 $ 62,624 $ 1.01 $ 1.01 $ .72

1998
(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)

First Quarter $ 707,381 $ 174,366 $ 49,136 $ .79 $ .78 $ .18

Second Quarter 701,747 164,742 38,689 .62 .61 .18

Third Quarter 616,848 119,973 13,573 .22 .22 .18

Fourth Quarter 653,865 122,574 13,139 .21 .21 .18

$ 2,679,841 $ 581,655 $ 114,537 $ 1.84 $ 1.82 $ .72
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The Timken Company 

maintained profitability 

in 1999 and offset longer-

than-expected weaknesses 

in many markets and

regions of the world.  

The company achieved 

its third highest sales in 

company history and, for

the third consecutive year,

succeeded in reducing 

the number of days’ 

supply in inventory.



We have begun our 101st year on a high note.  Late in 1999, we elected a new president,

Jim Griffith, and accelerated the company's transformation to a global business with a new

organization, new leaders and a broader line of products and services.  Early in 2000, business

conditions worldwide are showing signs of improvement, creating greater sales opportunities

than during the last six quarters.  We intend to take advantage of these opportunities.

During 1999, we achieved many of our objectives, in spite of a difficult environment.

Since mid-1998, our U.S. automotive business has remained strong.  New products and strong

demand have kept our automotive-related plants humming.  But our industrial business has

been a different story.  Only now, a year later than anticipated, is it beginning to recover from

the severe aftershocks of the 1997 Asian economic crisis.  This part of our company serves

industries such as energy, agriculture and mining that bore the full brunt of commodity 

deflation and recessions in many nations.  At one point, prices of commodities produced 

by those industries were driven down to their lowest historical levels in constant dollars.  

As their need for new equipment dwindled, our sales to those industries fell, and we have

seen increased pricing pressures.

Actions we had taken earlier in the 1990s to streamline operations, reduce costs, introduce

new products and enter new markets cushioned the impact.  Our 1999 return on capital

declined, but we did generate a total shareholder return of 12.4 percent.  Earnings in 1999

totaled $62.6 million.  To improve our financial position, we brought down inventories to

record lows, reduced employment and decreased costs.  Working capital efficiency was

improved further, and capital spending was decreased 33 percent.  Our working capital to

sales ratio is the industry benchmark.  By the end of 1998, we had completed certain major

capital projects, including a new $55 million steel plant rolling mill for additional productivity.

In 1999, we initiated a series of smaller capital spending projects – $5 million to $10 million 

in range – targeted to growing new businesses.  One example was investing in equipment for

our fast-growing Precision Steel Components business which enables us to provide greater 

customer value and simultaneously lower customers’ cost structures.  Overall, about 30 percent

of 1999 capital spending went for business growth.  2000 capital spending will increase to 

support more business growth but will not approach 1997 or 1998 levels.

Our internal measure of free cash flow reflects several factors, including earnings before

interest and taxes, depreciation, amortization, working capital changes, tax payments and 

capital expenditures.  1999 was a record for generating free cash flow and enabled us to 

To Our
Shareholders
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reduce debt which stood at

$450 million at year-end 

1999 versus $470 million a 

year earlier. In addition, we

were able to repurchase

800,000 shares of the 

company’s common stock.

Additional cash also was used

to buy out our joint venture

partner in India where 

Timken India now operates as a Timken Company subsidiary.  We now have greater 

financial capacity for making more growth investments worldwide.

At the end of 1999, having completed bearing inventory reductions, some areas were 

operating at improved production levels, giving us higher rates of absorption of fixed costs.

Looking ahead in 2000, we are determined to further reduce fixed costs by up to $50 million

and have teams in place to achieve that.  

We also succeeded in increasing penetration in some important markets we serve, thanks

to a combination of broadened product offerings and expanded services that create additional

value for our customers worldwide.  One example is our line of advanced package bearings 
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The Office of the Chairman

includes William R. Timken, Jr.

(seated left), chairman and 

chief executive officer; 

James W. Griffith (seated right),

president and chief operating 

officer; Bill J. Bowling 

(standing left), executive vice 

president, chief operating officer

and president – steel; and 

Robert L. Leibensperger, 

executive vice president, 

chief operating officer and 

president – bearings.
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for truck applications.  Sales for this UK-based operation increased by 77 percent during the

last year.  Our joint venture in China produced the company’s first complete package bearing

and hub assembly. The customer was Beijing Jeep, a joint venture of DaimlerChrysler and

Beijing Auto Works.  This success story continues our drive to manufacture fewer discrete 

parts and more integrated modules.  Other successes included making our first deliveries of

cylindrical bearings to the rolling mill industry and continuing to increase sales of 

metric bearings.

We will continue to fund additional growth initiatives, especially for developing profitable

new businesses and products.  Much of the required funding will come from changes to our

administrative infrastructure.  We will be adding sales engineers and reducing managerial 

staff, a process already underway.

Another part of our strategy involves continuing to rationalize operations in ways that 

will better serve customers and lower our cost structure.  In January 2000, we announced 

plans to restructure distribution operations in Europe.  This restructuring positions us to work

more closely with customers and reduces fixed costs and employment.  We are closing five 

distribution centers in Europe and outsourcing this work to a specialist in the field.  

IDENTIFYING AND MEETING NEW MARKET NEEDS

During the 1990s, a key to improved performance has been a sharpened emphasis on 

customer needs in specific markets.  We are creating more market-focused teams.  One 

will focus on rolling mills to further strengthen our presence in this major market for large 

industrial bearings.  At the same time, we will continue to identify and meet new market

needs, as we have done successfully with Precision Steel Components, Industrial Bearing

Services and Aerospace Services. Another such action was taking our Rail Bearing Services

business international.  In addition to the U.S., it now has operations in the UK, South Africa

and Mexico.  In those nations, we are the only major rail bearing service provider.  That

expansion not only has increased our rail service business but also has generated new 

original equipment sales to the rail industry.

In January 2000, we strengthened our ability to assure customers of uninterrupted 

supply by reaching an early agreement with the union representing our Canton, Wooster 

and Columbus production workers.  The contract terminates in September 2005.

One possible negative on the horizon is an International Trade Commission (ITC) review

of anti-dumping duty orders now covering imports from certain Asian and Central European

nations.  Should the ITC revoke those orders, unfairly priced imports from those countries

could seriously harm our company.

In all, it is clear that by the end of 2000, The Timken Company will look and operate in

ways that are decidedly different.  We are positioning ourselves to grow as our markets open

themselves to more services, customer-supplier partnerships and value-enhancing products.

Let us be clear on this point: we have been and will remain a worldwide leader in 

bearings and steel.  In fact, these products and our attendant core technical competencies will

serve as the foundation on which we will continue to broaden the base of the products and 



W. R.Timken, Jr.

Bill J. Bowling Robert L. Leibensperger

James W. Griffith

February 4, 2000

New Leadership,
New Organization

During the second half of the 1990s, we

engaged in extensive strategy development to

accelerate transforming our company.  The pace 

of this change is speeding up.  In December 1999,

soon after Jim Griffith was elected president, we

began to reorganize.  This change reduces national

and regional aspects of our organization and

enables us to operate with global businesses.  

Six of them, in fact.  They are Aerospace, Alloy

Steel, Automotive, Industrial, Precision Steel

Components and Rail.  The new structure presents

additional opportunities to work more closely with

customers who are themselves global in scope, to

introduce new products and services faster and

increase our market presence.

As part of this transformation, our board of

directors has elected new officers as follows: 

• Mike Arnold, president – industrial

• Donna Demerling, president – aerospace 

and super precision

• Mark Samolczyk, president – precision 

steel components

• Vinnie Dasari, president – rail

• Bill Burkhart, senior vice president and 

general counsel

• Sallie Ballantine Bailey, director – finance 

and treasurer

• Scott Scherff, corporate secretary

Bill Bowling and Karl Kimmerling, already 

officers, are presidents of the alloy steel and 

automotive businesses, respectively.  Two 

other officers have moved to new positions: 

Jon Elsasser is senior vice president – corporate 

development, and Sal Miraglia is senior vice 

president – technology.

Jim Griffith will play the key role of leading

our company into its second century.  Jim joined

the company in 1984 and has had extensive 

experience in international operations and strate-

gic management.  He has consistently employed

the broad perspective to lead a global organization

in an intensely competitive manufacturing 

environment.  We have built a firm foundation for

profitable growth and Jim, as our new president,

will certainly lead the company to higher levels 

of performance.  All of us are excited about the

opportunities ahead.

W. R. Timken, Jr.

services we offer as solutions for our customers.

We have a dedicated, hard-working team of 

nearly 21,000 associates, about two-thirds of them

Timken shareholders.  More than 37 percent of them

work outside the U.S.  They have shown a consistent 

willingness to work to ever-higher performance 

expectations.  It is gratifying to know they are all 

committed to participating in and supporting our 

transformation.  As the company continues to grow,

they will become an increasingly diverse team.  As a

result, they will bring to the table a broader range of

thinking and perspective, and that in turn will lead to

even stronger performance.

During 2000, we will lose the following officers 

to retirement: Bob Leibensperger, executive vice 

president, chief operating officer and president – 

bearings; Larry Brown, senior vice president and 

general counsel; John Schubach, senior vice president –

strategic management and continuous improvement;

Tom Strouble, senior vice president – e-business 

(and until recently senior vice president –  

technology).  Together, they represent more than 

130 years of service and have provided innumerable

major contributions.  They will be missed.

Two members of our board, Al Whitehouse and

Chuck West, are retiring.  We have valued their service

and they, too, will be missed.  We have nominated to

join our board Jacqueline F. Woods, president of

Ameritech Ohio.  She will stand for election at the 

April 18th board meeting.



Large mine trucks, drivelines and shovels

Pumping and mining equipment; turbines and generator wheels

Pulverizers, co-generation plants

High-speed printing presses, windmills, machine tools

Rolling mills, pulp/paper mills, gear drives, pumps, compressors

Oil and gas well drill bits; high-pressure logging tool housings; 
perforating guns; specialty down-hole tools; drill collars

Transmissions, wheels, axles, crankshafts and hydraulic 
cylinders for excavators, crawler dozers, backhoes, 
combines, tractors

Cutting tools for hand, construction and 
industrial applications

Steel components for power transfer units

Light-, medium- and heavy-duty trucks; automobiles; motorcycles; 
racing and recreational vehicles

CVT’s (continuously variable transmissions)

Axles, front and rear wheels, transmissions and transaxles, 
transfer cases

Engine crankshafts, camshafts, fuel injector systems, piston crowns

Transmission gears, shafts, synchronizer sleeves, clutch races

Driveline gears, axles, CV joints

Commercial and military aircraft, helicopters, missiles, 
satellites, space shuttles, ground-based and marine turbines

Engines, gear boxes, transmissions, auxiliary 
power units

Landing wheels

Instrumentation, fuel control, satellite 
mechanisms

MARKETS SERVED TYPICAL APPLICATIONS

Wheels, drive trains and motor suspension 
units in rail transit and passenger 
cars, freight cars and 
locomotives

Medical: hip, knee, heart implants; X-ray equipment; CT scanners;
dental handpieces; surgical tools

Computer disk drives

Semi-conductor (wafer fabrication) equipment

High-pressure polyethylene reactor tubing; navy nuclear components

Custom knife blades

High-temperature fasteners

AEROSPACE

AUTOMOTIVE & TRUCK

INDUSTRIAL & MINING

CONSTRUCTION & FARM

RAILROAD

SUPER PRECISION & SPECIALTY
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1999 HIGHLIGHTS/FAST FACTS OUTLOOK

•Most aircraft produced or operated in North America and
Western Europe land on Timken® bearings.

•Timken received FAA-PMA certification for its line of aircraft
landing wheel bearings.

•Helicopter team formed to support steadily increasing market
penetration.

•Grew qualification bases in European and mainshaft turbine
engine bearing refurbishment markets.

• Markets lagged expected turnaround, yet penetration 
was retained.

• Acquisition of Desford Steel Tubes in UK, allowing expanded
services to a broader, global customer base.

• Installed sensor-equipped bearings in rolling mill and 
off-highway applications.

• Successful AquaSpexx™ bearing installation in U.S. rolling mills.

• Increased penetration of IsoClass™ bearings in gear drives.

•Delivered first bearings made from new CSS-42L specialty 
steel; also received first orders from Asia for bearings using 
this material.

•World’s largest supplier of polyethylene reactor tubing.

• Introduced products into the tool steel industry’s powder 
metal segment, where extended life and improved grindability
are desired.

•Timken Latrobe maintained market penetration in the tool 
steel segment despite aggressive import pressure.

•Increased aftermarket activity will establish a platform for 
sustainable, profitable growth.

•Large jet and military aircraft decline will be offset partially 
by strong regional and business aircraft segments.

•Moderate growth is expected in the helicopter market.

•Expect continued weakness in many North American markets; 
highway and bridge construction seen as steady.

•Asian markets expected to continue recovery through 2000.

•Bearing preform (ring) market expected to grow globally.

• Gradual improvement in European, Asian and North American 
markets.

• US imports of steel expected to continue decline from 1998 levels.

• Growth expected as energy markets recover. Expect some increase 
in the power generation market.  Oil prices expected to remain high.

• Modified alloy steels realizing new potential in oil tools where 
deeper wells require enhanced material performance.

• New programs for enhanced delivery lead times are increasing 
Timken market penetration.

• Introduction of Handpiece Headquarters e-commerce in the
first quarter 2000 will spark penetration of dental handpiece
repair markets.

• Strong computer sales at more stable prices will present
opportunities in the disk drive and semiconductor segments.

• Specialty steel requirements for aerospace will begin to 
recover.

• Market for tool steels and cutting steels will remain stable.
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•Introduced the UNIT-BEARING™ for rear disc brake vehicles.

•Yantai Timken began supplying hub bearings to Beijing Jeep.

•Launched auto service parts and kits in Latin America.

•Grew production of advanced package bearings for heavy trucks.

•Fully integrated Timken Polska as supplier to global automotive 
business.

•North America’s leading supplier of steel products for mechanical 
powertrain applications.

• Continued high growth in semi-finished automotive parts.

• Truck package bearing production to begin at Timken do Brasil.

• Continued consolidation of truck industry worldwide.  Globally,
strong market activity predicted for first half of 2000.

• Europe and Asia markets expected to continue recovery 
through 2000.

• North American light vehicle and heavy truck demand to 
soften slightly.

• Won unconditional approval from the American Association 
of Railroads for Timken AP-2™ bearing design series.

• Amtrak’s new high-speed trains, named ACELA, are scheduled
to carry passengers in 2000 between Wash., D.C., New York
and Boston.  These trains will contain Timken® Parapremium™
steel and high-speed package bearings in their axles.

• Global growth of railroad bearing refurbishment services 
continued.

•Startup of a rail bearing refurbishing facility in Mexico is
expected.

•Developing sensor technology to increase bearing 
performance in rail applications.

•Some weakening expected in North American market.

• First sale of steel components to construction market.

• Introduced debris-resistant bearings for critical applications.

• Achieved Strategic Alliance Agreements with several key 
customers.

• Demand from agricultural equipment manufacturers 
decreased significantly.



Reorganizing for Accelerated, 
Profitable Growth

The Timken Company sees the recently
announced reorganization of its businesses as 
the spark that will ignite a surge of growth in profitability,

performance and competitiveness in the new decade.  As demonstrated on the 

facing page, the leaders of our new businesses have a vision for profitable growth.  Teaming

with our new president and chief operating officer, Jim Griffith, they will work in concert to

rationalize operations, expand markets and introduce new products and services that

will add value for customers and shareholders.

This leadership team will drive the company’s customer focus toward entire

industries, regardless of where in the world they are located.  The company’s

actions in 1999, and those you will see in 2000, are all geared to emphasize the

global nature of its products and services, and to align the company’s operations

with key industries worldwide in the most efficient, cost-effective way.  In 1999,

for example, Timken expanded operations in four plants dedicated to the strong

automotive market – in the U.S., Brazil, the UK and Canada – while ceasing 

automotive bearing production in South Africa and Australia.

By June 2000, our new industry-focused organization will include defined market 

teams within the six global businesses.  For example, we will form a dedicated heavy truck 

team, based in Europe, under the automotive business.  “This market approach is a most effec-

tive improvement tool,” says Mr. Griffith, “as it will allow us to work so closely with 

customers that we’ll be able to contribute strategically to their success.”

GLOBAL GROWTH, GLOBAL QUALITY

Although Timken has been an international supplier of quality products and services for

decades, our customer base has become increasingly global in the past five years.  As a result,

we are rapidly applying the latest technology to manufacturing operations at our newest acqui-

sitions to enable them to elevate the quality of their products.  Timken Italia, Timken Polska,

Timken Romania and Yantai Timken now exceed the requirements of major western customers.

The Timken Company enforces measurable standards in every plant that produces Timken

product so that the quality in design and manufacture is consistent, no matter where in the world

the products are manufactured.  

It is this undeviating commitment to quality and performance that preserves the integrity of

our brand – and adds differentiating value to our product. 
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"In the large

industrial bearing

market, we will

be further broad-

ening our offering

of products and

services to meet

the ever-changing

needs of our 

customers and

fuel profitable

growth."  

"Our company’s

commitment to

investing in

research and

development 

will continue to

be central to

spurring growth

and enhancing 

our aerospace

bearing industry

leadership."  

"We are the

world’s largest

maker of seam-

less mechanical

tubing. The 

acquisition of

Timken Desford

Steel in the UK

enables us to 

provide a broader

customer base

with superior

quality and 

faster service."  

"Our advanced

package bearings

and bearing 

systems for both

light and heavy

vehicles are 

evidence of our

commitment to

advancing 

technology."  

"Our Precision

Steel Components

business is

enabling us to

create value for

our customers

and lower their

cost structures.

At the same 

time, the rapid

growth of this

business is

strengthening

financial perfor-

mance for 

shareholders."  
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Mike Arnold, 
President –
Industrial

Bill Bowling, 
Executive Vice 
President, 
COO and President –
Steel

Donna Demerling,
President – Aerospace
and Super Precision

Karl Kimmerling,
President –
Automotive

Mark Samolczyk,
President –
Precision Steel
Components

From left:  Donna Demerling, Bill Bowling, 

Mark Samolczyk

From left:  Mike Arnold, Karl Kimmerling

"Providing 

high-tech, 

cost-effective 

solutions to the

rail industry is 

top priority.

Growing this 

business 

internationally 

is imperative."  

Vinnie Dasari,
President – Rail



Another major element of our ongoing transformation to accelerate growth is development

of new products and services that allow us to move deeper into the value chain and differen-

tiate us from our competitors.  An expanding line of technologically advanced Timken®

Smart Bearings™ for industrial, railroad and automotive customers is creating unprecedented

opportunities for customers to sense temperature, load, speed and vibration in vehicles, rolling

mills and rail cars.  

The current strength in the automotive market is spreading beyond the U.S. to the 

heavy-duty truck market in Europe.  Our Advanced Package Bearings plant in the 

United Kingdom – which opened in 1998 and already has undergone an expansion –

is dedicated to producing customized and cost-effective package bearings for medium

and heavy commercial vehicle wheels and pinions.  

And industry is finding new ways to take advantage of Timken® AquaSpexx™

bearings, the corrosion-resistant bearing that operates in any environment where water

is a problem.  With a patented coating originally developed for the aerospace industry,

AquaSpexx bearings now perform under tough operating conditions in rolling mills, as

well as in recreational vehicles exposed to salt water, fresh water and snow. 

In 1999, the company reached milestones with aerospace, rail and IsoClass products as well.

Timken received the Federal Aviation Administration-Parts Manufacturer Approval for its line of

aircraft landing wheel bearings.  This approval distinguishes Timken bearings for their quality

and assures that operators are receiving products that provide the highest level of reliability 

during operation.  And the Association of American Railroads has granted unconditional approval

of the Timken® AP-2™ railroad bearing for locomotive and freight car axles.  This allows the 

AP-2 bearing to replace the company’s original AP™ (All-Purpose) bearing in thousands of rail

cars across the country.  Sales of Timken® IsoClass™ bearings, introduced in 1998, are growing

as well.  Our units in Europe and Asia teamed together to meet the Asian market’s increased

demand, increasing sales in that region by nearly 87 percent in 1999 over the previous year.  

INTERNET IS KEY TO EXPANDING SERVICES

Beyond products, we are providing cost-effective solutions with expanded customer 

services such as bearing refurbishment for the aerospace, dental, industrial and railroad markets.

We also are growing our capability to provide repair and maintenance of components beyond

the bearing, such as mill chocks, couplings and drive spindles for steel and aluminum mills.  

We continue to grow our e-business sites, providing 24-hour access to product availability, order

entry and other on-line services.  “As a tool for conducting business, the Internet is key to our

long-term strategy,” says Tom Strouble, senior vice president – e-business.

Just about anywhere you turn, you’ll be riding in or using something that contains Timken

bearings and steel.  Whether in the New York City subway, on a high-speed train in Korea or

flying high above the clouds, Timken products are making your ride smoother, quieter and safer.
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IMAGINE:  A Timken Company 

truck on every road delivering 

Timken products for every other 

vehicle to every country in the world.

We do.  That’s why we continue to

develop advanced products for the

automotive industry, like the 

Timken® PINION-PAC™ bearing 

for heavy-duty trucks.
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Associates at Yantai Timken work

quickly to produce package bearing

hub units for Beijing Jeep’s new

Chinese-built sport utility vehicle.  

U.S. Timken provided production 

technology for a number of 

operations including electronic 

gauging, grinding and material 

handling.

Opposite Page:

The front wheels of Beijing Jeep’s 

1999 Jeep Cherokee 6420 contain 

complete hub assemblies made by

Yantai Timken.

Balancing Rationalization
and Growth

“Integral to the company’s continued transformation will be a 

carefully chosen balance between rationalization and targeted growth.”

– Jim Griffith, president and chief operating officer



Over the past year or two, Timken has

changed the face of many of its operations 

to achieve greater efficiency and provide 

faster customer response.  The automotive-

related rationalization mentioned earlier is one

example.  The consolidation of the company’s

European distribution services into one central

warehouse in France is another.  As the world

changes, we continue to examine where it makes

sense to produce and distribute our products and services.  We expect more such rationaliza-

tions to occur in 2000.

Our newest acquisitions are key players in this balancing act, as they 

provide opportunities for both growth and rationalization.  In China, in 1999,

Yantai Timken associates produced complete package bearing hub assembly

units – greased and sealed – for Beijing Jeep to handle rough road conditions

in China.  A truly global team effort, this project brought together Timken 

technology and expertise from Yantai Timken, Timken Research in Canton,

and sales offices in Detroit, Charlotte, Hong Kong and Beijing.

We will continue to create value-added solutions for customers through 

integrated products such as this.

Whether in China, Poland, India, the U.S., Romania or elsewhere, all of our facilities

have access to the same global research and development capabilities and experience. 

In Romania, for instance, we have invested some $10 million in the past two years for new

equipment, quality and productivity improvements, and new telecommunications technology.

These investments facilitate the transfer of bearing design and application details, building the

body of knowledge among Timken experts around the world.  In fact, in the near future, we

will establish in Romania our Large Bore Bearing Customer Engineering and Design Center.

Already, we have recruited additional engineers to join our existing worldwide technical team of

Timken scientists in the U.S., Europe and in our new research centers in India and Japan.

Together, they are stretching their reach across oceans to form a global technology stream that

provides round-the-clock research and development.

Our balancing point between growth and rationalizations will fluctuate with changes 

in global markets and economies.  Our eye is trained on new developments that affect the 

delicate balance between building the Timken brand, generating sales growth, managing 

inventories, generating cash and controlling costs – all of which will increase profitability and

shareholder value. 
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With the acquisition of Desford Tubes in the UK in late 1998, Timken Desford quickly is

becoming the company’s center of expertise in cold reducing steel tubes.  Acclaimed as having

the second-largest capacity in the world for this particular process, Timken Desford has enabled

rationalization of our alloy steel cold-reducing operations.

In addition, Timken Desford’s reputation for quality product is expanding our market reach

to serve steel customers throughout Europe.  As with our new bearing plants, this new member

of the Timken team will benefit from the company’s reservoir of materials science expertise.  

Recognized worldwide as a leader in steel technology, The Timken Company

received two grants in 1999 from the U.S. Department of Energy that 

will support the company’s work in controlled thermo-mechanical 

processing and in developing a laser gauging system for dimensional 

control.  Both projects will help to reduce cost and improve the quality of our

seamless mechanical tubing.

This and other research and development work being conducted in 

our design centers around the world form the foundation for improving our

competitiveness and return to shareholders.  The 960 bearing and steel prototypes

produced by Timken Research in 1999 set an all-time record for rapid, front-line 

customer solutions.  Our Precision Steel Components business – providing the bearing,

industrial and automotive industries with preformed parts from steel tubing and bars – clearly

has benefited from our ability to develop a wide range of high-tech prototypes quickly and cost-

effectively.  Adding value to our steel products and cutting customers’ operating costs, these

products have enjoyed a five-fold increase in sales since 1992.

Certainly, technological expertise helped Timken expand its reach in the rolling mill 

industry in 1999, providing cylindrical (straight roller) and tapered roller bearings for critical

applications to leading original equipment manufacturers and rolling mill operators.  The Timken

TQTM assembly, a recently introduced four-row-bearing, is a prime example.  This assembly

increases gauge accuracy and operating speed in rolling mills that process steel and aluminum

sheet for products such as cans, appliances and auto bodies.  “Our successes in this industry are

the direct result of combining integrated technical expertise with a quality product, and backing

up that product with impeccable service,” says Mike Arnold, president – industrial. 

With an eye to the future and the promise it holds for our company, we will remember 

1999 as The Timken Company’s centennial year.  Throughout 1999, the Timken family and 

company officers traveled to six continents, thanking Timken associates, retirees and their 

families, as well as customers and investors for their contributions to the company’s first 100

years of success.  “We wanted to recognize the value our associates bring to The Timken

Company,” says W. R. Timken, Jr.  “We hire the best and the brightest.  Their skills, knowledge

and commitment to a common goal make us a formidable global competitor and allow us to

serve our customers and shareholders well.”

Expanding Markets
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Newly acquired Timken 

Desford Steel in Leicester,

England, complements our 

existing tube-making operations

and allows us to serve new 

customers around the world in

industries we know well.  For

example, Timken Desford 

supplies high-quality steel rings 

to Turner Powertrain Systems 

in Wolverhampton, England.

Turner Powertrain machines 

the rings and installs them into 

its transmissions, which are 

sold to off-highway equipment 

manufacturers around the world. 



Local communities and Timken

Company associates around the

world participated in and benefited

from the year’s events.  Timken

associates refurbished the 1904 

St. Louis (the first car company to

use Timken bearings), which was 

a centerpiece at many events.

During 1999, the company used 

its centennial to strengthen bonds

with important constituents.  

In the photos above, Timken 

executives meet with customers

and distributors, ring the opening

bell at the NYSE, and are inter-

viewed by European journalists.

100 Years
And Growing

The 9-foot-tall time capsule 

sculpture, which will be opened 

in 50 years, holds memorabilia 

from the company’s first century,

including the company history,

bearings and steel, Henry Timken’s

first bearing patents and photos.
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business.  We will continue to seek opportunities for its 
growth through internal initiatives and possible cooperative 
partnerships.

A series of moves designed to accelerate the company’s 
profitable growth began with the election in the fourth quarter
of James W. Griffith as president and chief operating officer and
as a director.  Mr. Griffith announced that, in 2000, the new
organization will revolve around six dedicated business units
serving global markets.  Three new officers were elected, 
effective January 1, 2000, to lead three of the new business
units.  Donna J. Demerling was named president – aerospace
and super precision; Michael C. Arnold was named president –
industrial; and Mark J. Samolczyk was named president – 
precision steel components.  Vinod K. Dasari was elected 
an officer, effective March 1, and named president – rail.  
Bill J. Bowling and Karl P. Kimmerling, already officers, are 
presidents of the alloy steel and automotive businesses, 
respectively.  The timing of these changes capitalizes on the
pending normal retirements in 2000 of four key executives:
Larry R. Brown, senior vice president and general counsel;
Robert L. Leibensperger, executive vice president, chief 
operating officer and president – bearings; John J. Schubach,
senior vice president – strategic management and continuous
improvement; and Thomas W. Strouble, senior vice president –
e-business (until recently, senior vice president – technology).

Three others were elected officers as follows:  Sallie Ballantine
Bailey, director – finance and treasurer; Scott A. Scherff, 
corporate secretary; and William R. Burkhart, senior vice 
president and general counsel.  Ms. Bailey’s and Mr. Scherff’s
elections were effective in November 1999 and Mr. Burkhart’s 
is effective April 1.

Two other officers have moved to new positions:  Jon T.
Elsasser is senior vice president – corporate development, and
Salvatore J. Miraglia, Jr. is senior vice president – technology.

Also in the fourth quarter, the company reached an early 
tentative agreement with the United Steelworkers of America,
which represents its workers in the Canton, Columbus and
Wooster facilities.  Members ratified the new five-year 
agreement in January 2000.  The new contract will extend
through September 26, 2005, and is the third consecutive 
early agreement reached by the company.

MD&A  SUMMARY

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements set forth in this annual report that are not historical in nature are forward-looking.  In particular, the Corporate Profile on pages 
6 and 7 and Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 17 through 24 contain numerous forward-looking statements.  The company cautions 
readers that actual results may differ materially from those projected or implied in forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of the 
company due to a variety of important factors, such as:

a) changes in world economic conditions.  This includes, but is not limited to, the potential instability of governments and legal systems in countries 
in which the company conducts business, and significant changes in currency valuations.

b) changes in customer demand on sales, product mix, and prices.  This includes the effects of customer strikes, the impact of changes in industrial 
business cycles, whether conditions of fair trade continue in the U.S. market, and the possible revocation in the U.S. of the anti-dumping duty orders
on tapered roller bearings, on which a decision is to be reached by the U.S. government by the end of June 2000.

c) competitive factors, including changes in market penetration, the introduction of new products by existing and new competitors, and new technology
that may impact the way the company’s products are sold or distributed.

d) changes in operating costs.  This includes the effect of changes in the company's manufacturing processes; changes in costs associated with varying
levels of operations; changes resulting from inventory management and cost reduction initiatives and different levels of customer demands; the 
effects of unplanned work stoppages; changes in the cost of labor and benefits; and the cost and availability of raw materials and energy.

e) the success of the company's operating plans, including its ability to achieve the benefits from its ongoing continuous improvement and 
rationalization programs; its ability to integrate acquisitions into company operations; the ability of recently acquired companies to achieve 
satisfactory operating results; its ability to maintain appropriate relations with unions that represent company associates in certain locations in 
order to avoid disruptions of business and its ability to successfully implement its new organizational structure.

f) unanticipated litigation, claims or assessments.  This includes, but is not limited to, claims or problems related to product warranty and 
environmental issues.

g) changes in worldwide financial markets to the extent they (1) affect the company's ability or costs to raise capital, (2) have an impact on the overall 
performance of the company's pension fund investments and (3) cause changes in the economy which affect customer demand.
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Sales and earnings were down from a year ago, but 
The Timken Company maintained profitability and offset 
longer-than-expected weaknesses in many markets and regions
of the world through successful growth initiatives, ongoing 
rationalizations, and a strong automotive market.  In 1999, 
sales were $2.495 billion compared to a record $2.68 billion 
a year ago.  Earnings were $62.6 million, down from 1998’s 
$114.5 million.  In 1998, the company recorded $21.4 million 
of pre-tax expenses for structural changes.  In addition, in 
1999 the company reduced debt by $19.5 million and 
repurchased 800,000 shares of the company’s stock under 
the 1998 common stock purchase plan.

In Bearings, automotive markets remained strong while 
global industrial market weakness continued.  Sales in Europe
remained weak while Asia Pacific markets showed continuing
signs of recovery.  In Steel, improved productivity and lower 
raw material costs were not sufficient to entirely offset 
pricing pressure and weakened demand in industrial and 
energy markets.

In 1999, the company continued integrating new acquisitions,
rationalized certain operations for improved efficiency and 
customer service, and announced a reorganization of its global
operations, beginning with the election of a new president.

In the first quarter, two actions increased the company’s 
presence in India.  Timken Engineering and Research in
Bangalore was formed, and Timken bought out its Indian joint
venture partner, creating Timken India Limited.  This acquisition
raised the total number of Timken associates at year-end by
about 550.  The company’s newest acquisition, Timken Desford
Steel, began the integration process in the first quarter.  By 
year-end it had completed the first phase of an aggressive 
accelerated continuous improvement process.  

In the second quarter, the company completed the closing 
of its manufacturing operations in Australia, rationalizing the 
production of certain automotive products to Timken plants 
in Canada and Brazil.

In the third quarter, the company announced it would explore
strategic alternatives for its specialty steel subsidiary, Timken
Latrobe Steel.  Having completed the initial stage of the process,
the company has determined it will retain Timken Latrobe Steel
as a separate business within The Timken Company’s Steel 



Year Ended December 31

1999 1998 1997

(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)

Net sales $ 2,495,034 $ 2,679,841 $ 2,617,562
Cost of products sold 2,002,366 2,098,186 2,005,374

Gross Profit 492,668 581,655 612,188

Selling, administrative and general expenses 359,910 356,672 332,419
Operating Income 132,758 224,983 279,769

Interest expense (27,225) (26,502) (21,432)
Interest income 3,096 2,986 2,250
Other income (expense) (9,638) (16,117) 6,005

Income Before Income Taxes 98,991 185,350 266,592
Provision for income taxes 36,367 70,813 95,173

Net Income $ 62,624 $ 114,537 $ 171,419

Earnings Per Share $ 1.01 $ 1.84 $ 2.73
Earnings Per Share-Assuming Dilution $ 1.01 $ 1.82 $ 2.69

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 25 through 33. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE STATEMENT OF INCOME

1999 COMPARED TO 1998
Net sales for 1999 were $2.495 billion, 6.9% below the record
$2.680 billion in 1998.  North American automotive markets 
continued to show strength.  However, industrial sales, including
original equipment and aftermarket, were down significantly as
were sales in rail and aerospace markets.  Steel’s oil country and
service center markets remained weak.  Asia Pacific markets 
continued to improve throughout the year from 1998’s extremely
depressed levels.  Sales in Europe were well below 1998’s levels;
however, markets there showed some signs of improvement 
during the last half of the year.  Sales from Timken Desford Steel
and Timken India Limited, acquired in December 1998 and
March 1999, respectively, added about $54 million to 1999’s sales.

Gross profit was $492.7 million (19.7% of net sales), down 
15.3% from 1998’s $581.7 million (21.7% of net sales).
Contributing to the decline in profits were lower sales volumes
(particularly of industrial and aftermarket products), a less 
favorable product mix, weakening prices, and lower production
levels resulting in higher unabsorbed fixed costs.  These factors,
along with substantial inventory reductions and exchange rate
changes, contributed to weaker performance in the company’s
European operations.  Gross profit in 1998 included 
approximately $15 million of expense related to unusual 
occurrences and $15.4 million related to structural changes 
and cost-reduction initiatives. 

Operating income decreased to $132.8 million in 1999 compared
to $225 million in 1998.  Selling, administrative and general
expenses were $359.9 million (14.4% of net sales) in 1999, 
up slightly from the $356.7 million (13.3% of net sales) in 1998.
Excluding the $6 million of expense recorded in 1998 related to
severance costs and abandoned potential business opportunities,
the year-to-year change in expenses would have reflected an
increase of 2.6%.  Normal administrative expenses for Timken
Desford Steel and Timken India Limited, acquisitions completed
during the past year, account for most of the year-to-year increase.

"Other expense" decreased in 1999.  In 1998, the company
recorded $7.4 million of expense for the disposal of certain fixed 

assets related to a company-initiated internal fixed asset review
conducted approximately every five years. 

Taxes represented 36.7% of income before taxes compared to
38.2% in 1998.  The company’s effective tax rate in 1999 was
lower due primarily to greater utilization of foreign and state 
tax credits.  

In the fourth quarter of 1998, the company recorded expenses 
of $21.4 million ($19.1 million for Bearings and $2.3 million for
Steel) related to cost-cutting initiatives in its administrative and
manufacturing areas.  Of this amount, $15.4 million was 
included in cost of sales and $6 million was selling, general 
and administrative expense.  At December 31, 1998, the 
company had remaining reserves of $16.2 million, which were
essentially exhausted by year-end 1999.  The reserves included
costs related to the planned elimination of 515 positions.  To
date, the company has eliminated 476 positions and made cash 
payments of approximately $10.0 million to the terminated 
associates.  Current expectations are that a total of 490 positions
will be eliminated.  Additional cash payments of approximately
$0.5 million will be made to those associates terminated in the
first quarter of 2000.  

During 1999, the company successfully closed its manufacturing
operations in Australia, closed its automotive lines in South
Africa and reduced its raw material and operational costs at 
its Brazilian facility.  In addition, the company continued to
rationalize certain operations between its bearing plants in the
United Kingdom and France. 

Bearings’ net sales in 1999 were $1.760 billion, down 2.1% from
$1.798 billion in 1998.  North American automotive sales
increased by about 18% over last year resulting primarily from
continued demand for sport utility vehicles and strong 
production levels in light and heavy truck markets.  Bearings
also experienced similar sales increases in automotive markets
around the world.  Demand in most other bearing markets was
down in 1999 compared to 1998.  Sales in North American
industrial markets, including original equipment and aftermarket, 
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declined by 17% compared to 1998’s levels, due primarily to
lower demand from customers in energy, construction, mining
and farm equipment industries.  Aerospace and super precision
sales were off by more than 7% in 1999 compared to the 
previous year.  North American railroad sales also declined by 13%.

Demand in Europe and Latin America remained soft during 
the year.  European sales were down year-to-year; however, 
Western European markets began to show some strength toward
year-end, particularly in automotive markets.  The financial crisis
in Latin America impacted markets there.  Asia Pacific sales 
continued to show improvement throughout the year, increasing
by 16% over 1998’s depressed levels.  Bearings’ 1999 sales
include Timken India Limited sales for the last nine months 
of the year, since the company became a majority owner in the
joint venture in March 1999.  Looking at 2000, the company
believes that global automotive markets should remain strong
throughout the year with some softening of North American 
light vehicle and heavy truck demand.  The company also
expects continued improvement in global industrial markets 
as the year progresses.  Meanwhile, industry over-capacity and
dumping continue to exert downward pressures on pricing.

Bearings’ earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) 
in 1999 decreased to $80.5 million, down by 39.6% from 
$133.3 million in 1998.  Considering the $19.1 million reduction
in 1998’s EBIT that resulted from initiatives identified to improve
global competitiveness and reduce costs, Bearings’ EBIT would
have suffered a 47.2% structural decline.  Lower demand for
industrial products, combined with efforts to significantly reduce
inventory levels during the year, hurt manufacturing performance
as industrial bearing plants operated well below capacity during
much of the year.  Profits generated from higher sales of 
automotive product were not great enough to offset the effect 
of the global decline in industrial business.  Bearings’ EBIT was
also affected by weak performance in its European operations.
Selling, administrative and general expenses were higher in 
1999, due in part to the addition of Timken India Limited and
higher expenses required to support growth initiatives.  

In January 2000, the company announced it was transferring 
its distribution activities from its existing facilities in Europe to 
a central warehouse operated by an external service provider 
in Strasbourg, France.  This will improve significantly the 
company’s ability to serve customers in Europe and will result 
in the elimination of approximately 60 positions.  The company
is in the process of evaluating other opportunities to rationalize
bearing operations in Europe and elsewhere in the world to 
offset lower demand levels, reduce fixed costs and improve
operating efficiency. 

Steel’s net sales, including intersegment sales, were $947 million
in 1999, down 12.6% from $1.083 billion in 1998.  Sales of 
precision steel components included in the above were 
$150.4 million in 1999 compared to $131.5 million in 1998.
Alloy Steel sales for 1999 included the entire year’s sales from
Timken Desford Steel acquired in December 1998.  Sales to
external customers were down by about 17%.  In automotive
markets, precision steel component sales were up by 14% with
alloy steel sales remaining flat compared to 1998.  Sales in all
other markets remained weak during 1999.  Oil country and 
service center markets were markedly weaker with sales 
declining by 72% and 50%, respectively.  Order bookings in 
service center and oil country markets began to show signs of
limited strengthening in the latter half of 1999.  In general, 
service center distributor inventories were brought back into 
balance during the year; however, based on the current level 
of active rig counts, the company estimates that customers in 
oil markets still have about 3 months of excess inventory.
Aerospace sales declined by about 43% compared to 1998 
and industrial sales were off by 29%.  Sales to external bearing
customers also dropped by 21%.  The company expects 

demand for steel products to show modest growth during the
year 2000 with continued strength in automotive markets and
strengthening industrial, service center and oil markets. 

Steel’s EBIT in 1999 was $44 million, down 40.4% from 
$73.8 million in the previous year.  In 1998, Steel’s EBIT 
was reduced by approximately $15 million resulting from a 
combination of unusual events.  In addition, 1998’s EBIT was
reduced by $2.3 million as a result of expenses related to 
initiatives aimed at reducing costs in coming years.  Adjusting
1998’s EBIT for these unusual items, 1999’s EBIT would have
been down 51.7%.  Lower sales in higher margin markets, 
price erosion and higher manufacturing costs associated with
lower production volumes were the primary causes for the 
drop in profits.  

Although production volumes increased during the fourth 
quarter of 1999, the company’s steel plants operated at about
80% of capacity during much of the year.  The Steel business
took numerous actions to reduce manufacturing and 
administrative costs during the year; however, the benefits were
not sufficient to offset the effect of lower sales and production
volumes.  Staff reductions were made in administrative areas; in
plants, the work force was aligned to match the lower volumes.
Steel also achieved significant gains in operating efficiency, as
associates set new output records with about 230 fewer 
associates.  Raw material costs also were significantly lower in
1999.  Steel’s selling, general and administrative expenses were
higher for the year due in part to severance costs related to 
additional administrative staff reductions.  Expenses would have
been lower in 1999 except for the addition of Timken Desford
Steel acquired in December 1998.  

1998 COMPARED TO 1997
Net sales for 1998 were a record $2.680 billion, an increase of
2.4% above the $2.618 billion reported for 1997.  Sales gains
were achieved in North American automotive and rail markets
and in Europe.  The company’s acquisitions made in 1997 and
early 1998 also contributed to 1998’s increase.  Sales in the U.S.
industrial and Asia Pacific markets weakened during the year as
a result of the global economic decline.  Gross profit was 
$581.7 million (21.7% of net sales), down 5% from 1997’s 
gross profit of $612.2 million (23.4% of net sales).  Unusual 
occurrences in 1998 in the company’s steel operations, 
unexpected near-term order reductions, and lower manufacturing
levels aimed at controlling inventory levels reduced the year’s
gross profit by about $15 million.  In response to this decline 
in demand, the company reduced its workforce by more than 
400 associates in its manufacturing operations during the last half
of 1998.  Gross profit was lower in 1998 by $15.4 million due to
expenses for structural changes initiated by its bearing and steel
businesses to reduce costs and improve profitability in 1999.
Approximately half of this expense related to workforce 
reductions planned for early 1999 and the remainder related to
impaired equipment.  In 1998, expense for performance-based
pay programs was lower by $7.1 million as a result of the 
company’s lower performance levels.  Operating income also
declined in 1998.  Selling, administrative and general expenses
were higher in 1998 to support the company’s strong growth
plans and to cover expenses incurred at newly acquired 
subsidiaries.  In addition, the company recorded $6 million 
of expense in the fourth quarter, $4 million of which related 
primarily to severance costs for the elimination of administrative
salaried positions.  The company also wrote off $2 million of
costs associated with abandoned potential business investment
opportunities.  In 1998, administrative performance-based pay
was $14.3 million lower due to the company’s lower profitability.
Other expense increased in 1998 compared to 1997 and includes
$7.4 million of expense for the disposal of certain fixed assets
related to a company-initiated internal fixed asset review 
conducted approximately every five years.  Other income in 1997
included a gain on the sale of property in the United Kingdom.  
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CONSOLIDATED Balance Sheet

December 31

1999 1998

(Thousands of dollars)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,906 $ 320
Accounts receivable, less allowances: 1999–$9,497; 1998–$7,949 339,326 350,483
Deferred income taxes 39,706 42,288
Inventories:

Manufacturing supplies 38,655 43,899
Work in process and raw materials 235,251 229,397
Finished products 172,682 183,950

Total Inventories 446,588 457,246
Total Current Assets 833,526 850,337

Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings 483,810 464,259
Machinery and equipment 2,428,923 2,324,872

2,912,733 2,789,131
Less allowances for depreciation 1,531,259 1,439,592

Property, Plant and Equipment-Net 1,381,474 1,349,539

Other Assets

Costs in excess of net assets of acquired businesses, net 
of amortization: 1999–$34,879; 1998–$28,936 153,847 150,140

Deferred income taxes -0- 20,409
Miscellaneous receivables and other assets 43,668 52,520
Deferred charges and prepaid expenses 28,803 27,086

Total Other Assets 226,318 250,155
Total Assets $ 2,441,318 $ 2,450,031
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE SHEET

Maintaining a strong balance sheet and strong credit ratings have
been important objectives for the company.  During 1999, the
company maintained an "A" rating on its long-term debt by two
rating agencies.

Total assets decreased by $8.7 million from December 31, 1998,
due to the company’s efforts to control working capital and a
planned reduction in capital spending.  The consolidation of
Timken India Limited (formerly Tata Timken Limited) assets into
the company’s balance sheet added approximately $46 million 
to the company’s assets.  Prior to the March 1999 increase in
ownership to 80%, the company’s investment in Timken India
Limited was accounted for using the equity method.  

For the third consecutive year, the company succeeded in 
reducing the number of days’ supply in inventory to 108 days 
at December 31, 1999, compared to 109 days and 112 days at 

December 31, 1998 and December 31, 1997, respectively.
Bearing inventory (including Timken India Limited) decreased 
by about 10 days during 1999 as Bearings took aggressive action
to reduce manufacturing schedules while continuing to meet 
customer demand.  Steel’s inventory (including Timken Desford
Steel) increased by about 12 days due in part to the higher level
of business activity in the fourth quarter.  The number of days’
sales in receivables at December 31, 1999, was basically
unchanged from the year-end 1998 level.

The company uses the LIFO method of accounting for about
75% of its inventories.  Under this method, the cost of products
sold approximates current cost and, therefore, reduces distortion
in reporting income due to inflation.  Depreciation charged to
operations is based on historical cost and is significantly less
than if it were based on replacement value.



December 31

1999 1998

(Thousands of dollars)

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Commercial paper $ 35,937 $ 29,873
Short-term debt 81,296 96,720
Accounts payable and other liabilities 236,602 221,823
Salaries, wages and benefits 192,885 106,999
Income taxes 5,627 17,289
Current portion of long-term debt 5,314 17,719

Total Current Liabilities 557,661 490,423

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term debt 327,343 325,086
Accrued pension cost 76,005 149,366
Accrued postretirement benefits cost 394,084 390,804
Deferred income taxes 6,147 -0-
Other non-current liabilities 34,097 38,271

Total Non-Current Liabilities 837,676 903,527

Shareholders’ Equity

Class I and II Serial Preferred Stock without par value: 
Authorized–10,000,000 shares each class, none issued -0- -0-

Common stock without par value:
Authorized–200,000,000 shares
Issued (including shares in treasury) 63,082,626 shares
Stated capital 53,064 53,064
Other paid-in capital 258,287 261,156

Earnings invested in the business 836,916 818,794
Accumulated other comprehensive income (64,134) (49,716)
Treasury shares at cost (1999 – 1,886,537 shares; 1998 – 1,234,462 shares) (38,152) (27,217)

Total Shareholders’ Equity 1,045,981 1,056,081
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 2,441,318 $ 2,450,031

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 25 through 33. 
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"Other assets" declined by $23.8 million in 1999 due primarily 
to a reduction in deferred income taxes.  This resulted principally
from the company’s election to make cash contributions to its
pension plans in 1999 and future plans to make additional 
contributions to its pension plans in 2000.  

Accounts payable and other liabilities increased by $14.8 million
in 1999 due in part to the consolidation of Timken India 
Limited and increased activity at Timken Desford Steel since 
its acquisition in December 1998.  The $85.9 million increase 
in salaries, wages and benefits resulted primarily from a 
reclassification of the company’s accrued pension cost liability 

to short-term due to the company’s anticipated 2000 cash 
contributions to its pension plans.  

The 30.1% debt-to-total-capital ratio was slightly lower than 
the 30.8% at year-end 1998.  Debt decreased by $19.5 million
during the year, from $469.4 million at year-end 1998 to 
$449.9 million at December 31, 1999.  The company took 
aggressive actions in Bearings to improve cash provided by
operating activities primarily through the reduction of inventory
levels.  In addition, capital spending was curtailed to conserve
cash.  Debt at year-end 1999 included $6.6 million on the 
books of Timken India Limited, acquired in March 1999. 



Net cash provided by operating activities in 1999 was 
$277.4 million, the third highest in company history.  This 
compares to $291.9 million in 1998 and the record of 
$312 million in 1997.  Cash generated from income in 1999 
was more than sufficient to cover working capital, pay 
dividends, pay interest and fund purchases of property, plant
and equipment.  The increase in the provision for deferred
income taxes resulted primarily from the company’s election to
make additional cash contributions to its pension plans in 
1999 and 2000.  "Common stock issued in lieu of cash to benefit
plans" was lower by about $46 million resulting primarily from
the company’s decision to fund employee benefit plans with
shares of common stock purchased on the open market versus
using treasury shares.  The company was successful in effectively
managing working capital during 1999.  "Accounts receivable"
was lower and generated $12.4 million of cash.  A decrease in
inventories provided $6.6 million of cash during 1999 compared
to $2.5 million in 1998.  Cash also was provided by a 

Year Ended December 31

1999 1998 1997

(Thousands of dollars)

CASH PROVIDED (USED)

Operating Activities

Net income $ 62,624 $ 114,537 $ 171,419
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 149,949 139,833 134,431
Deferred income tax provision (credit) 20,760 6,935 (1,564)
Common stock issued in lieu of cash to benefit plans 467 46,396 20,452
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 12,390 13,037 (48,584)
Inventories 6,551 2,478 (25,758)
Other assets 13,307 (5,046) (4,298)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 13,291 (27,223) 66,357
Foreign currency translation (gain) loss (1,921) 919 (472)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 277,418 291,866 311,983

Investing Activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment–net (164,872) (237,835) (233,392)
Acquisitions (29,240) (41,667) (78,739)

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (194,112) (279,502) (312,131)

Financing Activities

Cash dividends paid to shareholders (44,502) (44,776) (38,714)
Purchases of treasury shares (14,271) (80,462) (18,083)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 4,076 139,666 60,453
Payments on long-term debt (20,867) (23,333) (30,217)
Short-term debt activity–net (411) (12,918) 32,485

Net Cash (Used) Provided by Financing Activities (75,975) (21,823) 5,924
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 255 (45) (1,294)

Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,586 (9,504) 4,482
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 320 9,824 5,342

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 7,906 $ 320 $ 9,824

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 25 through 33. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

$13.3 million increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses,
which resulted primarily from higher accounts payable to 
suppliers, offset in part by lower income taxes payable. 

"Purchases of property, plant and equipment-net" during the
twelve months ended December 31, 1999, was $164.9 million,
30.7% below the $237.8 million spent in 1998.  Growth initiatives
continued, however, as the company supported capital projects
consistent with its strategies to maintain industry leadership.  
The company also invested approximately $29 million to
increase its ownership from 40% to 80% in Timken India Limited.
In 1998, the company invested $41.7 million in new acquisitions.
Further capital investments in technologies within plants
throughout the world provide the opportunity to improve 
the company’s competitiveness and meet the needs of its 
growing base of customers.  

The company also used funds during the year to repay 
debt and to repurchase shares of the company’s stock under 
the 1998 common stock purchase plan.  During 1999, the 

CONSOLIDATED  Statement of Cash Flows



during 2000 will be sufficient to cover working capital, pay 
dividends, fund debt service requirements and fund currently
planned capital expenditures.  Any further cash needs, such as
those that may be required for potential future acquisitions or
cash contributions to the company’s pension plans, could be met
by short-term borrowing and issuance of medium-term notes. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OTHER INFORMATION 

The industry’s antidumping duty orders covering imports of
tapered roller bearings from Japan, China, Hungary and 
Romania are currently in the process of being reviewed by U.S. 
government agencies to determine whether dumping and injury
to the domestic industry are likely to continue or recur if the
orders were to be revoked.  These reviews commenced in April
1999, and should conclude by the end of the second quarter
2000.  The company is actively participating in the proceedings.
If the U.S. government determines that dumping and injury are
likely to continue or recur, the antidumping duty finding and
orders will continue in place for another five years.  If, however,
a determination is made that injury to the domestic industry is
unlikely to continue or recur with respect to any of the four
countries covered, the finding or order will be revoked with
respect to that country.  If, following the revocation of such an
order, injurious dumping does continue or recur, contrary to the
finding of the government, the improved conditions of fair trade
of tapered roller bearings in the U.S., which resulted from the
existing orders, would deteriorate.  If injurious dumping does
occur, such dumping could have a material adverse effect on the
company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

In readying systems for 2000 compliance, the company used a
defined methodology that included inventory and assessment,
remediation, test, integration, implementation and contingency
plan components.  Begun in 1996, this program encompassed
Timken worldwide business systems and operations, 
manufacturing and distribution systems, technical architecture,
end-user computing and the company’s supplier and 
customer base.  

This effort led to the successful startup of global business 
systems and production operations during and immediately after 
the January 1st weekend.  To date, no environmental, systems 
or operational problems have resulted that impact the company’s
ability to conduct business or its financial position.  The 
company has not experienced any significant year-2000-related
compliance problems with its customers, suppliers, business
partners or governments.  A program that will continue through
March 31, 2000, has been implemented to monitor and control
year 2000 turnover at all corporate facilities.

Total costs associated with the company’s year 2000 conversion
efforts were approximately $13 million.  The Timken Company’s
year 2000 efforts have had minimal impact on its other 
information technology programs.

In 1999, the company increased its discount rate for U.S.-based
pension and postretirement benefit plans from 7.0% to 8.25% to
reflect the increase in year-end interest rates.  However, the
favorable impact that this change has on pension and 
postretirement expense calculations will be more than offset 
by plan improvements.  The combined expense for U.S.-based
pension and postretirement benefits is expected to increase by
about $21 million in 2000.

Changes in short-term interest rates related to three separate
funding sources affect company earnings.  These sources are
commercial paper issued in the United States, floating rate 
tax-exempt U.S. municipal bonds with a weekly reset mode 
and short-term bank borrowing at international subsidiaries.  

If the market rates for short-term borrowings increased by 
1% around the globe, the impact would be an interest expense
increase of $1.6 million with the corresponding decrease of
income before taxes of the same amount.  This amount was
determined by considering the impact of hypothetical interest
rates on the company’s borrowing cost, year-end debt balances
by category and an estimated impact on the tax-exempt 
municipal bonds’ interest rates. 

Fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar as compared to 
foreign currencies, predominantly in European countries, also
affect company earnings.  The greatest risk relates to product
shipped between the company’s European operations and the
United States.  Foreign currency forward contracts and options
are used to hedge these intracompany transactions.  In addition,
hedges are used to cover third-party purchases of product and
equipment.  As of December 31, 1999, there were $27.4 million
of hedges in place.  A uniform 10% weakening of the dollar 
against all currencies would have resulted in a shortfall of 
$0.7 million on these hedges.  In addition to the direct impact
on the hedged amounts, changes in exchange rates also affect
the volume of sales or the foreign currency sales price as 
competitors’ products become more or less attractive.  

The company’s subsidiary in Romania is considered to operate 
in a highly inflationary economy.  Therefore, foreign currency
gains and losses resulting from transactions and the translation 
of financial statements are included in the results of operations.
In 1999, the company recorded unrealized exchange losses of
$9.1 million related to the translation of Timken Romania’s 
financial statements.  The devaluation of the Brazilian real that
occurred in January 1999 did not have a significant impact on
the company’s results of operations for the year.

The company continues to protect the environment and 
comply with environmental protection laws.  The company 
has invested in pollution control equipment and updated plant 
operational practices.  In 1999, the company reissued its 
environmental policy, revised in accordance with ISO 14001
environmental management system requirements, and committed
to becoming ISO 14001 certified within the next several years.
The company believes it has established adequate reserves to
cover its environmental expenses and has a well-established
environmental compliance audit program, which includes a
proactive approach to bringing its domestic and international
units to higher standards of environmental performance.  This
program measures performance against local laws as well as to
standards that have been established for all units worldwide.

It is difficult to assess the possible effect of compliance with
future requirements that differ from existing ones.  As previously
reported, the company is unsure of the future financial impact 
to the company that could result from the United States
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA’s) final rules to tighten
the National Ambient Air Quality Standards for fine particulate
and ozone.  This continues to be true in view of the fact that 
the rules have now been remanded by the federal courts for 
further consideration by the EPA.

The company and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries have been 
designated as potentially responsible parties (PRP’s) by the 
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company acquired about 800,000 shares to be held in treasury 
as authorized under the 1998 plan.  As of year-end 1999, 
2.6 million shares of the 4 million shares authorized were 
purchased pursuant to the plan.  The authorization to purchase
shares under the 1998 plan expires December 31, 2001.  The
company expects that cash generated from operating activities 



Common Stock Earnings Accumulated

Other Invested Other

Stated Paid-In in the Comprehensive Treasury

Total Capital Capital Business Income Stock

(Thousands of dollars)

Year Ended December 31, 1997

Balance at January 1, 1996 $ 922,228 $ 53,064 $ 270,840 $ 619,061 $ (12,799) $ (7,938)
Net income 171,419 171,419
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of income tax of $3,401) (22,516) (22,516)
Minimum pension liability adjustment 

(net of income tax of $1,589) (2,711) (2,711)
Total comprehensive income 146,192
Dividends–$0.66 per share (41,447) (41,447)
Issuance of 32,224 shares(1) 3,033 3,033
Purchase of 697,100 shares for treasury (18,083) (18,083)

Issuance of 897,985 shares from treasury(1) 20,153 20,153

Balance at December 31, 1997 $1,032,076 $ 53,064 $ 273,873 $ 749,033 $ (38,026) $ (5,868)

Year Ended December 31, 1998

Net income 114,537 114,537
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of income tax of $1,315) (8,096) (8,096)
Minimum pension liability adjustment 

(net of income tax of $2,106) (3,594) (3,594)
Total comprehensive income 102,847
Dividends–$0.72 per share (44,776) (44,776)
Purchase of 3,012,900 shares for treasury (80,462) (80,462)

Issuance of 1,981,065 shares from treasury(1) 46,396 (12,717) 59,113

Balance at December 31, 1998 $1,056,081 $ 53,064 $ 261,156 $ 818,794 $ (49,716) $ (27,217)

Year Ended December 31, 1999

Net income 62,624 62,624
Foreign currency translation adjustments

(net of income tax of $2,829) (13,952) (13,952)
Minimum pension liability adjustment

(net of income tax of $274) (466) (466)
Total comprehensive income 48,206
Dividends–$0.72 per share (44,502) (44,502)
Purchase of 804,500 shares for treasury (14,271) (14,271)
Issuance of 152,425 shares from treasury(1) 467 (2,869) 3,336
Balance at December 31, 1999 $1,045,981 $ 53,064 $258,287 $836,916 $(64,134) $(38,152)
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United States EPA for site investigation and remediation at 
certain sites under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act (Superfund).  The claims for
remediation have been asserted against numerous other entities,
which are believed to be financially solvent and are expected to
fulfill their proportionate share of the obligation.  Management
believes any ultimate liability with respect to all pending actions
will not materially affect the company’s operations, cash flows
or consolidated financial position.

The Timken Aerospace & Super Precision Bearings subsidiary
has two environmental projects at its manufacturing locations 
in New Hampshire.  The company has provided for the costs 

of these projects, which to date have been $3.8 million.  A 
portion of these costs is being recovered from a former owner 
of the property.  Future operating and maintenance costs are
expected to be $1.4 million. 

The company has environmental projects at two of its 
manufacturing locations in Ohio.  A remediation system was
installed at the Columbus plant in 1998 and at the oil house site
in Canton in December 1999.  The company has provided for
the cost of these projects which to date have been $3.8 million.
A portion of the cost of the oil house project is being recovered
from the Ohio Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Release
Compensation Board.  Future operating and maintenance 
costs are expected to be approximately $1.2 million.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(1) Share activity was in conjunction with employee benefit and stock option plans.  See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 25 through 33. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF Shareholders’ Equity



earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiaries.  The amount of undistrib-

uted earnings that is considered to be indefinitely reinvested for

this purpose was approximately $46,000,000 at December 31,

1999.  Accordingly, U.S. income taxes have not been provided

on such earnings.  While the amount of any U.S. income taxes

on these reinvested earnings – if distributed in the future – 

is not presently determinable, it is anticipated that they would 

be reduced substantially by the utilization of tax credits or

deductions.  Such distributions would be subject to 

withholding taxes.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements 

in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes.  These estimates and assumptions are

reviewed and updated regularly to reflect recent experience.

Foreign Currency Translation:  Assets and liabilities of 

subsidiaries, other than those located in highly inflationary 

countries, are translated at the rate of exchange in effect on the

balance sheet date; income and expenses are translated at the

average rates of exchange prevailing during the year.  The 

related translation adjustments are reflected as a separate 

component of accumulated other comprehensive income.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from transactions 

and the translation of financial statements of subsidiaries in 

highly inflationary countries are included in results of operations.

The company recorded a foreign currency exchange loss of

$9,856,000 in 1999, a loss of $1,332,000 in 1998 and a gain of

$731,000 in 1997.

Earnings Per Share:  Earnings per share are computed by

dividing net income by the weighted-average number of 

common shares outstanding during the year.  Earnings per share -

assuming dilution are computed by dividing net income by the

weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 

adjusted for the dilutive impact of potential common shares 

for options.

Derivative Instruments: In June 1998, the FASB issued SFAS

No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activities," as amended, which is required to be adopted by the

company effective January 1, 2001.  Because of the company’s

minimal use of derivatives, management anticipates that the

adoption of the new Statement will not have a significant effect

on earnings or the financial position of the company.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts reported in the 1998 

financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the

1999 presentation.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation:  The consolidated financial 

statements include the accounts and operations of the company

and its subsidiaries.  All significant intercompany accounts and

transactions are eliminated upon consolidation.

Revenue Recognition: The company recognizes revenue

when products are shipped or services rendered.

Cash Equivalents: The company considers all highly 

liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when

purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or 

market, with 75% valued by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method.

If all inventories had been valued at current costs, inventories

would have been $142,806,000 and $167,466,000 greater at

December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and 

equipment is valued at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Provision for depreciation is computed principally by the

straight-line method based upon the estimated useful lives of 

the assets.  The useful lives are approximately 30 years for 

buildings, 5 to 7 years for computer software and 3 to 20 years

for machinery and equipment.

Costs in Excess of Net Assets of Acquired Businesses:
Costs in excess of net assets of acquired businesses (goodwill)

are amortized on the straight-line method over 25 years for 

businesses acquired after 1991 and over 40 years for those

acquired before 1991.  The carrying value of goodwill is

reviewed for recoverability based on the undiscounted cash

flows of the businesses acquired over the remaining amortization

period.  Should the review indicate that goodwill is not 

recoverable, the company's carrying value of the goodwill would

be reduced by the estimated shortfall of the cash flows.  In 

addition, the company assesses long-lived assets for impairment

under Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (FASB) Statement

of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, "Accounting

for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived

Assets to Be Disposed Of."  Under those rules, goodwill 

associated with assets acquired in a purchase business 

combination is included in impairment evaluations when events

or circumstances exist that indicate the carrying amount of those

assets may not be recoverable.  No reduction of goodwill for

impairment was necessary in 1999 or in previous years.

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are provided for the

temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and

tax basis of the company's assets and liabilities.

The company plans to continue to finance expansion of its 

operations outside the United States by reinvesting undistributed 

Notes  TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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S.p.A., a manufacturer of medium-sized industrial bearings.  
Also, the company acquired a 70% interest in Rulmenti Grei S.A.
to form Timken Romania in December 1997, which produces
bearings used in industrial applications.

The total cost of these acquisitions amounted to $29,240,000 in
1999; $41,667,000 in 1998; and $78,739,000 in 1997.  A portion of
the purchase price has been allocated to the assets and liabilities
acquired based on their fair values at the dates of acquisition.
The fair value of the assets was $30,425,000 in 1999; $50,115,000
in 1998; and $85,619,000 in 1997; the fair value of liabilities
assumed was $9,790,000 in 1999; $13,026,000 in 1998; and
$20,075,000 in 1997.  The purchase allocation for Timken India
is preliminary, subject to obtaining asset appraisals.  The excess
of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets
acquired has been allocated to goodwill.  All of the acquisitions
were accounted for as purchases.  The company’s consolidated
financial statements include the results of operations of the
acquired businesses for the period subsequent to the effective
date of these acquisitions.  Pro forma results of operations have
not been presented because the effect of these acquisitions 
was not significant.

2. ACQUISITIONS

In March 1999, the company increased its ownership of Timken
India Limited (formerly Tata Timken Limited) from 40% to 80%.
Prior to the additional investment, the company accounted for
Timken India using the equity method.  As a result of the 
transaction, the Timken India financial position and operating
results are consolidated into the company’s financial statements.

In December 1998, the company purchased Desford Steel 
Tubes Ltd. of Leicester, England, to form Timken Desford Steel, 
a manufacturer of seamless mechanical tubing for bearing, 
automotive, off-highway and defense applications.  During 
1998, the company completed the acquisition of Bearing Repair
Specialists, an industrial bearing repair business that reconditions
or modifies a wide variety of bearing types for industrial 
customers in the United States and Canada.

In 1997, the company completed the acquisition of Handpiece
Headquarters, Inc. and the aerospace bearing operations of the
Torrington Company Limited that operate as subsidiaries under
Timken Aerospace & Super Precision Bearings.  In February
1997, the company purchased a third company, Gnutti Carlo 

3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the numerator and the denominator of earnings per share and earnings per share - 
assuming dilution for the years ended December 31:

1999 1998 1997
(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)

Numerator:
Net income for earnings per share and earnings per share - assuming 

dilution – income available to common shareholders $ 62,624 $ 114,537 $ 171,419
Denominator:

Denominator for earnings per share – weighted-average shares 61,795,162 62,244,097 62,786,387
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and awards – based on the treasury stock method 230,651 565,672 1,017,747
Denominator for earnings per share - assuming dilution – adjusted

weighted-average shares 62,025,813 62,809,769 63,804,134
Earnings per share $ 1.01 $ 1.84 $ 2.73
Earnings per share - assuming dilution $ 1.01 $ 1.82 $ 2.69

4. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated comprehensive income consists of the following:

1999 1998 1997

(Thousands of dollars)

Foreign currency translation adjustment $ (57,363) $ (43,411) $ (35,315)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (6,771) (6,305) (2,711)

$ (64,134) $ (49,716) $ (38,026)

Notes  TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Long-term debt at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was as follows:

1999 1998

(Thousands of dollars)

Fixed-rate Medium-Term Notes, Series A, due at various dates through
May 2028, with interest rates ranging from 6.20% to 7.76% $ 252,000 $ 267,000

Variable-rate State of Ohio Air Quality and Water Development 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, maturing on June 1, 2001

(5.65% at December 31, 1999) 21,700 21,700
Variable-rate State of Ohio Pollution Control Revenue Refunding

Bonds, maturing on July 1, 2003 (5.35% at December 31, 1999) 17,000 17,000
Variable-rate State of Ohio Water Development Revenue

Refunding Bonds, maturing May 1, 2007 (5.65% at December 31, 1999) 8,000 8,000
Variable-rate State of Ohio Water Development Authority Solid Waste

Revenue Bonds, maturing on July 2, 2032 (5.75 % at December 31, 1999) 24,000 24,000
Other 9,957 5,105

332,657 342,805
Less current maturities 5,314 17,719

$ 327,343 $ 325,086

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the five years 
subsequent to December 31, 1999, are as follows:
2000–$5,314,000; 2001–$23,650,000; 2002–$36,266,000;
2003–$17,663,000; and 2004–$5,421,000.

Interest paid in 1999, 1998 and 1997 approximated $32,000,000,
$28,000,000 and $24,000,000, respectively.  This differs from
interest expense due to timing of payments and interest 
capitalized of $3,700,000 in 1999; $4,800,000 in 1998; and
$2,200,000 in 1997 as a part of major capital additions.  The
weighted-average interest rate on commercial paper borrowings
during the year was 5.2% in 1999, 5.6% in 1998 and 5.7% in
1997.  The weighted-average interest rate on short-term debt 
during the year was 6.3% in 1999, 7.4% in 1998 and 6.6% in 1997.

At December 31, 1999, the company had available $264,000,000
through an unsecured $300,000,000 revolving or competitive bid 

credit agreement with a group of banks.  The agreement, 
which expires in June 2003, bears interest based upon any 
one of four rates at the company's option–adjusted prime,
Eurodollar, competitive bid Eurodollar, or the competitive bid
absolute rate.  Also, the company has a shelf registration filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission which, as of
December 31, 1999, enables the company to issue up to an 
additional $200,000,000 of long-term debt securities in the 
public markets.

The company and its subsidiaries lease a variety of real property
and equipment.  Rent expense under operating leases amounted
to $17,724,000, $16,934,000 and $16,689,000 in 1999, 1998 and
1997, respectively.  At December 31, 1999, future minimum 
lease payments for noncancelable operating leases totaled
$41,741,000 and are payable as follows:  2000–$12,056,000;
2001–$8,190,000; 2002–$6,338,000; 2003–$5,163,000;
2004–$4,141,000; and $5,853,000, thereafter.

for U.S. dollars and British pounds.  The realized and unrealized
gains and losses on these contracts are deferred and included in
inventory or property, plant and equipment depending on the
transaction.  These deferred gains and losses are recognized in
earnings when the future sales occur or through depreciation
expense.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, commercial paper, short-term borrowings and
accounts payable are a reasonable estimate of their fair value
due to the short-term nature of these instruments.  The fair
value of the company's fixed-rate debt, based on discounted
cash flow analysis, was $241,000,000 and $293,000,000 at
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.  The carrying 
value of this debt was $264,000,000 and $284,000,000.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As a result of the company’s worldwide operating activities, 
it is exposed to changes in foreign currency exchange rates
which affect its results of operations and financial condition.
The company and certain subsidiaries enter into forward
exchange contracts to manage exposure to currency rate 
fluctuations primarily related to the purchases of inventory and
equipment.  The purpose of these foreign currency hedging
activities is to minimize the effect of exchange rate fluctuations
on business decisions and the resulting uncertainty on future
financial results.  At December 31, 1999 and 1998, the company
had forward exchange contracts, all having maturities of less
than one year, in amounts of $27,393,000 and $21,613,000,
respectively, which approximates their fair value.  The 
forward exchange contracts were primarily entered into by the
company’s German subsidiary and exchanged Deutsche marks 
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The company sponsors defined contribution retirement and 
savings plans covering substantially all associates in the United
States and certain salaried associates at non-U.S. locations.  The
company contributes Timken Company common stock to certain
plans based on formulas established in the respective plan
agreements.  At December 31, 1999, the plans had 10,073,214
shares of Timken Company common stock with a fair value of
$205,871,000.  Company contributions to the plans, including
performance sharing, amounted to $14,891,000 in 1999;
$16,380,000 in 1998; and $16,245,000 in 1997.  The company
paid dividends totaling $6,838,000 in 1999; $5,519,000 in 
1998; and $4,366,000 in 1997, to plan participants holding 
common shares.

The company and its subsidiaries sponsor several unfunded
postretirement plans that provide health care and life insurance
benefits for eligible retirees and dependents.  Depending on
retirement date and associate classification, certain health care
plans contain contributions and cost-sharing features such as
deductibles and coinsurance.  The remaining health care plans
and the life insurance plans are noncontributory.

The company and its subsidiaries sponsor a number of 
defined benefit pension plans, which cover many of their 
associates except those at certain locations who are covered 
by government plans.

The following tables set forth the change in benefit obligation, change in plan assets, funded status and amounts recognized
in the consolidated balance sheet of the defined benefit pension and postretirement benefits as of December 31, 1999 and 1998:

Defined Benefit

Pension Plans Postretirement Plans

1999 1998 1999 1998

(Thousands of dollars)

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $1,496,111 $1,296,866 $ 463,385 $ 414,570
Service cost 35,876 32,441 4,857 4,562
Interest cost 103,232 95,520 33,525 30,188
Amendments 27,514 20,140 -0- 1,772
Actuarial (gains) losses (135,485) 135,029 (833) 41,786
Associate contributions 1,371 1,517 -0- -0-
Acquisition 12,155 -0- -0- -0-
International plan exchange rate change (3,997) 84 (109) 127

Benefits paid (85,048) (85,486) (34,518) (29,620)

Benefit obligation at end of year $1,451,729 $1,496,111 $ 466,307 $ 463,385

Change in plan assets(1)

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $1,314,158 $1,207,847
Actual return on plan assets 171,566 178,288
Associate contributions 1,371 1,517
Company contributions 46,673 11,751
Acquisition 12,155 -0-
International plan exchange rate change (3,422) 241

Benefits paid (85,048) (85,486)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $1,457,453 $1,314,158

Funded status

Projected benefit obligation (in excess of) or less than plan assets $ 5,724 $ (181,953) $(466,307) $ (463,385)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss (261,711) (54,013) 78,708 83,791
Unrecognized net asset at transition dates, net of amortization (6,253) (9,244) -0- -0-

Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) 115,066 104,433 (35,370) (40,080)

Accrued benefit cost $ (147,174) $ (140,777) $(422,969) $ (419,674)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

Accrued benefit liability $ (158,754) $ (151,777) $(422,969) $ (419,674)
Intangible asset 840 1,000 -0- -0-
Minimum pension liability included in accumulated

other comprehensive income 10,740 10,000 -0- -0-

Net amount recognized $ (147,174) $ (140,777) $(422,969) $ (419,674)

(1) Plan assets are primarily invested in listed stocks and bonds and cash equivalents.

7. RETIREMENT AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Notes  TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



The following table summarizes the assumptions used by the consulting actuary and the related benefit cost information:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

1999 1998 1997 1999 1998 1997

Assumptions

Discount rate 8.25% 7.0% 7.25% 8.25% 7.0% 7.25%
Future compensation assumption 3% to 4% 3% to 4% 3% to 4%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 9.25% 9.25% 9.25%

Components of net periodic benefit cost

(Thousands of dollars)

Service cost $ 35,876 $32,441 $ 26,144 $ 4,857 $ 4,562 $ 4,116
Interest cost 103,232 95,520 88,683 33,525 30,188 28,691
Expected return on plan assets (102,148) (95,083) (91,384) -0- -0- -0-
Amortization of prior service cost 16,412 16,033 13,019 (4,474) (4,489) (4,547)
Recognized net actuarial loss 1,724 1,646 764 3,796 544 -0-
Amortization of transition asset (1,951) (2,143) (2,283) -0- -0- -0-
Net periodic benefit cost $ 53,145 $ 48,414 $ 34,943 $ 37,704 $ 30,805 $ 28,260

For measurement purposes, the company assumed an annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of health care benefits (health 
care cost trend rate) of 7.5% declining gradually to 6% in 2002 and thereafter for pre-age 65 benefits, and 6% for post-65 benefits.

The assumed health care cost trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported.  A one percentage point increase in the
assumed health care cost trend rate would increase the 1999 total service and interest cost components by $1,907,000 and would
increase the postretirement benefit obligation by $25,409,000.  A one percentage point decrease would provide corresponding 
reductions of $1,831,000 and $24,183,000, respectively.
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they become probable and reasonably estimable. Environmental
costs include compensation and related benefit costs associated
with associates expected to devote significant amounts of time
to the remediation effort and post-monitoring costs.  Accruals
are established based on the estimated undiscounted cash flows
to settle the obligations and are not reduced by any potential
recoveries from insurance or other indemnification claims.
Management believes that any ultimate liability with respect to
these actions, in excess of amounts provided, will not materially
affect the company's operations, cash flows or consolidated
financial position.

9. CONTINGENCIES

The company and certain of its U.S. subsidiaries have been 
designated as potentially responsible parties (PRPs) by the
United States Environmental Protection Agency for site investiga-
tion and remediation under the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (Superfund) with
respect to certain sites.  The claims for remediation have been
asserted against numerous other entities which are believed to
be financially solvent and are expected to fulfill their propor-
tionate share of the obligation.  In addition, the company is 
subject to various lawsuits, claims and proceedings which arise
in the ordinary course of its business.  The company accrues
costs associated with environmental and legal matters when 

8. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Expenditures committed to research and development amounted
to approximately $50,000,000 in 1999; $48,000,000 in 1998; and 

Amounts applicable to the company’s pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets are as follows:

1999 1998

(Thousands of dollars)

Projected benefit obligation $ 32,488 $ 710,880
Accumulated benefit obligation 29,739 652,095
Fair value of plan assets -0- 567,753

$43,000,000 in 1997.  Such expenditures may fluctuate from year
to year depending on special projects and needs.
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The company sponsors a performance target option plan that 
is contingent upon the company’s common shares reaching
specified fair market values.  Under the plan, no awards were
issued nor was compensation expense recognized during 1997,
1998 or 1999.

Exercise prices for options outstanding as of December 31, 1999,
range from $12.88 to $33.75 and the weighted-average remaining
contractual life of these options is 7 years.  The estimated
weighted-average fair values of stock options granted during 

1999, 1998 and 1997 were $8.11, $10.19 and $7.58, 
respectively.  At December 31, 1999, a total of 263,829 
restricted stock rights, restricted shares or deferred shares have
been awarded under the above plans and are not vested.  The
company distributed 87,206, 78,831 and 71,188 common shares
in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, as a result of awards of
restricted stock rights, restricted shares and deferred shares.

The number of shares available for future grants for all plans,
including stock options, is 308,783, 1,654,222 and 2,396,441 at
year-end 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

A summary of activity related to stock options for the above plans is as follows for the years ended December 31:

1999 1998 1997
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

Outstanding - beginning of year 3,526,301 $23.73 3,180,136 $20.15 3,091,994 $17.80
Granted 1,186,100 19.45 861,900 33.35 762,200 26.44
Exercised (186,774) 16.72 (510,635) 17.71 (653,608) 16.41
Canceled or expired (9,951) 22.13 (5,100) 21.47 (20,450) 18.77
Outstanding - end of year 4,515,676 $22.90 3,526,301 $23.73 3,180,136 $20.15
Options exercisable 2,171,996 1,710,031 1,617,355

Following is the pro forma information and the related assumptions under the Black-Scholes method:

1999 1998 1997
(Thousands of dollars except per share data)

Pro forma net income $ 57,568 $ 110,750 $ 168,518
Earnings per share $ 0.93 $ 1.78 $ 2.68
Earnings per share - assuming dilution $ 0.93 $ 1.76 $ 2.64
Assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 5.33% 5.74% 6.90%
Dividend yield 2.79% 2.78% 3.13%
Expected stock volatility 0.444 0.271 0.235
Expected life - years 8 8 8

In addition, shares can be awarded to directors not employed
by the company.  The options have a ten-year term and vest in
25% increments annually beginning twelve months after the 
date of grant.  Pro forma information regarding net income and
earnings per share is required by Financial Accounting Standard
(FAS) No. 123, and has been determined as if the company had
accounted for its associate stock options under the fair value
method of FAS No. 123.  The fair value for these options was
estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option 
pricing model.  For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the 
estimated fair value of the options granted under the plan is
amortized to expense over the options’ vesting periods.  The
pro forma information indicates a decrease in net income of
$5,056,000 in 1999; $3,787,000 in 1998; and $2,901,000 in 1997.  

10. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

The company has elected to follow Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees," and related interpretations in accounting for its
stock options to key associates and directors.  Under APB
Opinion No. 25, because the exercise price of the company’s
stock options equals the market price of the underlying 
common stock on the date of grant, no compensation 
expense is recognized.

Under the company’s stock option plans, shares of common
stock have been made available to grant at the discretion of 
the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors to 
officers and key associates in the form of stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted shares and deferred shares.  

Notes  TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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11. INCOME TAXES

The provision (credit) for income taxes consisted of the following:

1999 1998 1997

Current Deferred Current Deferred Current Deferred

(Thousands of dollars)

United States:
Federal $ 9,988 $ 20,884 $ 50,056 $ 5,173 $ 76,866 $ (4,627)
State and local (552) 2,835 6,212 (1,384) 10,248 (294)

Foreign 6,171 (2,959) 7,610 3,146 9,623 3,357
$ 15,607 $ 20,760 $ 63,878 $ 6,935 $ 96,737 $ (1,564)

The company made income tax payments of approximately $14,760,000 in 1999; $62,190,000 in 1998; and $93,486,000 in 1997.  Taxes
paid differ from current taxes provided, primarily due to the timing of payments.

The effect of temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 1999 and 1998 was as follows:

1999 1998

(Thousands of dollars)

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued postretirement benefits cost $156,777 $ 156,371
Accrued pension cost 27,949 47,185
Benefit accruals 24,051 19,634
Foreign tax loss carryforwards 15,041 14,367
Other–net 17,160 25,375
Valuation allowance (15,041) (14,367)

225,937 248,565
Deferred tax liability–depreciation (192,378) (185,868)
Net deferred tax asset $ 33,559 $ 62,697

Following is the reconciliation between the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by applying the statutory U.S. 
federal income tax rate of 35% to income before income taxes:

1999 1998 1997

(Thousands of dollars)

Income tax at the statutory federal rate $ 34,647 $ 64,873 $ 93,307
Adjustments:

State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1,484 3,138 6,470
Tax on foreign remittances 1,216 -0- -0-
Non-deductible unrealized exchange losses 1,548 -0- -0-
Foreign tax credits (2,205) -0- -0-
Losses without current tax benefits -0- 2,307 -0-
Research tax credit claims for prior years -0- -0- (4,000)
Other items (323) 495 (604)

Provision for income taxes $ 36,367 $ 70,813 $ 95,173
Effective income tax rate 37% 38% 36%



United Other

Geographic Financial Information States Europe Countries Consolidated

(Thousands of dollars)

1999

Net sales $1,922,092 $ 364,380 $ 208,562 $2,495,034
Income before income taxes 112,556 (28,936) 15,371 98,991
Non-current assets 1,303,980 240,020 63,792 1,607,792

1998
Net sales $ 2,118,529 $ 373,877 $ 187,435 $ 2,679,841
Income before income taxes 172,388 10,757 2,205 185,350
Non-current assets 1,319,043 254,056 26,595 1,599,694

1997
Net sales $ 2,077,822 $ 339,630 $ 200,110 $ 2,617,562
Income before income taxes 229,612 15,916 21,064 266,592
Non-current assets 1,208,851 223,801 38,727 1,471,379
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made to other anti-friction bearing companies and to aircraft,
automotive, forging, tooling, oil and gas drilling industries and
steel service centers.  Tool steels are sold through the company’s
distribution facilities.

MEASUREMENT OF SEGMENT PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND SEGMENT ASSETS
The company evaluates performance and allocates resources
based on return on capital and profitable growth.  Specifically,
the company measures segment profit or loss based on earnings
before interest and income taxes (EBIT).  The accounting 
policies of the reportable segments are the same as those
described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
Intersegment sales and transfers are recorded at values based 
on market prices, which creates intercompany profit on 
intersegment sales or transfers.

FACTORS USED BY MANAGEMENT TO IDENTIFY THE 
ENTERPRISE’S REPORTABLE SEGMENTS
The company’s reportable segments are business units that 
offer different products.  Each reportable segment is managed
separately because each manufactures and distributes distinct
products with different production processes.

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

DESCRIPTION OF TYPES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES FROM
WHICH EACH REPORTABLE SEGMENT DERIVES ITS REVENUES
The company has two reportable segments:  Bearings and 
Steel.  The company’s Bearings business sells directly 
to customers in the automotive, railroad, aerospace, industrial
and service replacement markets.  The company’s tapered roller
bearings are used in a wide variety of products including 
passenger cars, trucks, railroad cars and locomotives, aircraft
wheels, machine tools, rolling mills and farm and construction
equipment.  Super precision bearings are used in aircraft, 
missile guidance systems, computer peripherals and medical
instruments.  Other bearing products manufactured by the 
company include cylindrical, spherical, straight and ball 
bearings for industrial markets.

Steel products include steels of intermediate alloy, vacuum
processed alloys, tool steel and some carbon grades.  These 
are available in a wide range of solid and tubular sections 
with a variety of finishes.  The company also manufactures 
custom-made steel products including precision steel 
components.  A significant portion of the company’s steel is 
consumed in its bearing operations.  In addition, sales are 

Bearings 71%
Steel 29%

The Timken Company
Net Sales to Customers

The Timken Company Net Sales
by Geographic Area

Steel
Net Sales – Total

United States 77%
Europe 15%

Other 8%

Customers 78%
Intersegment 22%

Notes  TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Segment Financial Information 1999 1998 1997

(Thousands of dollars)

Bearings

Net sales to external customers $1,759,871 $ 1,797,745 $ 1,718,876
Depreciation and amortization 83,255 80,175 76,625
Earnings before interest and taxes 80,548 133,318 165,520
Interest expense (21,817) (22,425) (16,880)
Interest income 3,018 2,086 1,270
Capital expenditures 116,569 145,613 122,350
Assets employed at year-end 1,476,545 1,514,780 1,455,086

Steel

Net sales to external customers $ 735,163 $ 882,096 $ 898,686
Intersegment sales 211,870 200,911 204,295
Depreciation and amortization 66,694 59,658 57,806
Earnings before interest and taxes 44,039 73,825 121,203
Interest expense (9,347) (7,714) (6,802)
Interest income 4,017 4,537 2,200
Capital expenditures 56,653 113,008 107,582
Assets employed at year-end 964,773 935,251 871,464

Total

Net sales to external customers $2,495,034 $ 2,679,841 $ 2,617,562
Depreciation and amortization 149,949 139,833 134,431
Earnings before interest and taxes 124,587 207,143 286,723
Interest expense (31,164) (30,139) (23,682)
Interest income 7,035 6,623 3,470
Capital expenditures 173,222 258,621 229,932
Assets employed at year-end 2,441,318 2,450,031 2,326,550

Income Before Income Taxes

Total EBIT for reportable segments $ 124,587 $ 207,143 $ 286,723
Interest expense (27,225) (26,502) (21,432)
Interest income 3,096 2,986 1,258
Intersegment adjustments (1,467) 1,723 43
Income before income taxes $ 98,991 $ 185,350 $ 266,592

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of The Timken Company and subsidiaries at 
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 1999, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Canton, Ohio

February 3, 2000
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF 
THE TIMKEN COMPANY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of The Timken Company and subsidiaries as of December 31,
1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated statements of
income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 1999.  These
financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s 
management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States.  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

Segment interest expense and income include intersegment amounts.  Both intersegment interest expense and income of $3,939,000,
$3,637,000 and $2,250,000 incurred in 1999, 1998 and 1997, respectively, were deducted from combined segment amounts to reconcile
consolidated amounts.  
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(Thousands of dollars, except per share data)

1999 1998 1997 1996

Statements of Income

Net sales:
Bearings $1,759,871 $ 1,797,745 $ 1,718,876 $ 1,598,040
Steel 735,163 882,096 898,686 796,717

Total net sales 2,495,034 2,679,841 2,617,562 2,394,757

Cost of products sold 2,002,366 2,098,186 2,005,374 1,828,394
Selling, administrative and general expenses 359,910 356,672 332,419 319,458
Impairment and restructuring charges -0- -0- -0- -0-
Operating income (loss) 132,758 224,983 279,769 246,905
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 123,120 208,866 286,766 242,304
Interest expense 27,225 26,502 21,432 17,899
Income (loss) before income taxes 98,991 185,350 266,592 225,259
Provisions for income taxes (credit) 36,367 70,813 95,173 86,322
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of  

accounting changes 62,624 114,537 171,419 138,937
Net income (loss) $ 62,624 $ 114,537 $ 171,419 $ 138,937

Balance Sheets

Inventory $ 446,588 $ 457,246 $ 445,853 $ 419,507
Current assets 833,526 850,337 855,171 793,633
Working capital 275,865 359,914 275,607 265,685
Property, plant and equipment 

(less depreciation) 1,381,474 1,349,539 1,220,516 1,094,329
Total assets 2,441,318 2,450,031 2,326,550 2,071,338
Total debt 449,890 469,398 359,431 302,665
Total liabilities 1,395,337 1,393,950 1,294,474 1,149,110
Shareholders’ equity $1,045,981 $ 1,056,081 $ 1,032,076 $ 922,228

Other Comparative Data

Net income (loss)/Total assets 2.6% 4.7% 7.4% 6.7%
Net income (loss)/Net sales 2.5% 4.3% 6.5% 5.8%
EBIT/Beginning invested capital (1) 5.6% 10.5% 16.1% 15.1%
Inventory days (FIFO) 108.4 109.4 111.5 117.5
Net sales per associate (2) $ 119.1 $ 127.5 $ 130.5 $ 132.4
Capital expenditures $ 173,222 $ 258,621 $ 229,932 $ 155,925
Depreciation and amortization $ 149,949 $ 139,833 $ 134,431 $ 126,457
Capital expenditures/Depreciation 120.3% 192.5% 177.3% 127.0%
Dividends per share $ 0.72 $ 0.72 $ 0.66 $ 0.60
Earnings per share (3) $ 1.01 $ 1.84 $ 2.73 $ 2.21
Earnings per share - assuming dilution (3) $ 1.01 $ 1.82 $ 2.69 $ 2.19
Debt to total capital 30.1% 30.8% 25.8% 24.7%
Number of associates at year-end 20,856 21,046 20,994 19,130
Number of shareholders (4) 42,907 45,942 46,394 31,813

Bearings Steel

(Billions of dollars)Total Net Sales to Customers

’95 ’96 ’97 ’98 ’99

$3

$1.5

$1.0

$0.5

$0
‘94‘90

$2.0

‘91 ‘92 ‘93

$2.5

* Before cumulative effect of accounting changes

Operating Income (loss) Income (loss)

Return on Net Sales*

’95 ’96 ’97 ’98 ’99‘94‘90 ‘91 ‘92 ‘93

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0%

-2%

-4%

(1)EBIT/Beginning invested capital, a type of return on asset ratio, is used internally to measure the company’s performance.  In broad terms, invested capital is total assets 
minus non-interest-bearing current liabilities.

(2)Based on the average number of associates employed during the year.
(3)Based on the average number of shares outstanding during the year and excludes the cumulative effect of accounting changes in 1993, which related to the adoption of 

FAS No. 106, 109 and 112.

Summary of Operations  AND OTHER COMPARATIVE DATA
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1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990(5)

$ 1,524,728 $ 1,312,323 $ 1,153,987 $ 1,169,035 $ 1,128,972 $ 1,173,056
705,776 618,028 554,774 473,275 518,453 527,955

2,230,504 1,930,351 1,708,761 1,642,310 1,647,425 1,701,011

1,723,463 1,514,098 1,369,711 1,300,744 1,315,290 1,287,534
304,046 283,727 276,928 299,305 300,274 287,971

-0- -0- 48,000 -0- 41,000 -0-
202,995 132,526 14,122 42,261 (9,139) 125,506
197,957 134,674 7,843 40,606 (16,724) 119,199
19,813 24,872 29,619 28,660 26,673 26,339

180,174 111,323 (20,919) 13,431 (41,950) 98,816
67,824 42,859 (3,250) 8,979 (6,263) 43,574

112,350 68,464 (17,669) 4,452 (35,687) 55,242
$ 112,350 $ 68,464 $ (271,932) $ 4,452 $ (35,687) $ 55,242

$ 367,889 $ 332,304 $ 299,783 $ 310,947 $ 320,076 $ 379,543
710,258 657,180 586,384 556,017 562,496 657,865
247,895 178,556 153,971 165,553 148,950 238,486

1,039,382 1,030,451 1,024,664 1,049,004 1,058,872 1,025,565
1,925,925 1,858,734 1,789,719 1,738,450 1,759,139 1,814,909

211,232 279,519 276,476 320,515 273,104 266,392
1,104,747 1,125,843 1,104,407 753,387 740,168 740,208

$ 821,178 $ 732,891 $ 685,312 $ 985,063 $ 1,018,971 $ 1,074,701

5.8% 3.7% (15.2)% 0.3% (2.0)% 3.0%
5.0% 3.5% (15.9)% 0.3% (2.2)% 3.2%

12.6% 9.0% 0.5% 2.5% (1.0)% 7.9%
112.2 118.0 122.5 137.8 139.9 162.8

$ 134.2 $ 119.9 $ 104.5 $ 95.3 $ 90.0 $ 94.2
$ 131,188 $ 119,656 $ 92,940 $ 139,096 $ 144,678 $ 120,090
$ 123,409 $ 119,255 $ 118,403 $ 114,433 $ 109,252 $ 101,260

109.1% 102.6% 80.2% 124.4% 135.6% 120.4%
$ 0.555 $ 0.50 $ 0.50 $ 0.50 $ 0.50 $ 0.49
$ 1.80 $ 1.11 $ (0.29) $ 0.07 $ (0.60) $ 0.92
$ 1.78 $ 1.10 $ (0.29) $ 0.07 $ (0.60) $ 0.92

20.5% 27.6% 28.7% 24.5% 21.1% 19.9%
17,034 16,202 15,985 16,729 17,740 18,860
26,792 49,968 28,767 31,395 26,048 25,090

* Assuming dilution and before cumulative effect of accounting changes

Earnings per Share* Dividends per Share

Earnings and Dividends per Share

’95 ’96 ’97 ’98 ’99‘94‘90 ‘91 ‘92 ‘93

$3

$1.5

$1.0

$0.5

$0

$2.0

$2.5

$-0.5

$-1

EBIT/Beginning Invested Capital

’95 ’96 ’97 ’98 ’99‘94‘90 ‘91 ‘92 ‘93

18%

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0%

-2%

(4)Includes an estimated count of shareholders having common stock held for their accounts by banks, brokers and trustees for benefit plans.  
(5)Includes Timken Aerospace & Super Precision Bearings for seven months.



Gene E. Little, 56, 32 years of service
Senior Vice President – Finance
Officer since 1990

Salvatore J. Miraglia, Jr., 49, 27 years of service
Senior Vice President – Technology
Officer since 1996

Stephen A. Perry, 54, 35 years of service
Senior Vice President – Human Resources, Purchasing 
and Communications
Officer since 1993

Hans J. Sack, 45, 10 years of service
Group Vice President – Specialty Steel and 
President – Timken Latrobe Steel
Officer since 1998

Mark J. Samolczyk, 44, 18 years of service
President – Precision Steel Components
Officer since 2000

Scott A. Scherff, 45, 20 years of service
Corporate Secretary
Officer since 1999

John J. Schubach, 63, 41 years of service
Senior Vice President – Strategic Management and 
Continuous Improvement
Officer since 1984

Thomas W. Strouble, 61, 43 years of service
Senior Vice President – E-Business
Officer since 1995

Ward J. Timken, 57, 31 years of service
Vice President
Officer since 1992

W. R. Timken, Jr., 61, 37 years of service
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Officer since 1968

Jay A. Precourt, 62, Director since 1996 (A)
Chairman 
Hermes Consolidated, Inc. (Vail, Colorado)

John M. Timken, Jr., 48, Director since 1986 (A) 
Private Investor (Old Saybrook, Connecticut)

Ward J. Timken, 57, Director since 1971
Vice President 
The Timken Company

W. R. Timken, Jr., 61, Director since 1965
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The Timken Company

Joseph F. Toot, Jr., 64, Director since 1968
Chairman of the Executive Committee – Board of Directors
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer
The Timken Company

Martin D. Walker, 67, Director since 1995 (C)
Chairman 
M. A. Hanna Company (Cleveland, Ohio)

Alton W. Whitehouse, 72, Director since 1986 (C) 
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
The Standard Oil Company (Cleveland, Ohio)

(A) Member of Audit Committee  (C) Member of Compensation Committee
OFFICERS
Michael C. Arnold, 43, 20 years of service
President – Industrial
Officer since 2000

Sallie B. Bailey, 40, 4 years of service
Director – Finance and Treasurer
Officer since 1999 

Bill J. Bowling, 58, 34 years of service
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer 
and President – Steel
Officer since 1996 

Larry R. Brown, 64, 10 years of service
Senior Vice President and General Counsel
Officer since 1990 (Retires March 31, 2000)

William R. Burkhart, 34, 5 years of service
Senior Vice President and General Counsel
Officer since 2000 (Effective April 1, 2000) 

Vinod K. Dasari, 33, 7 years of service
President – Rail
Officer since 2000 

Donna J. Demerling, 49, 27 years of service
President – Aerospace and Super Precision
Officer since 2000 

Jon T. Elsasser, 47, 21 years of service
Senior Vice President – Corporate Development
Officer since 1996

James W. Griffith, 45, 15 years of service
President and Chief Operating Officer
Officer since 1996

Karl P. Kimmerling, 42, 20 years of service
President – Automotive
Officer since 1998

Robert L. Leibensperger, 61, 39 years of service
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer 
and President – Bearings
Officer since 1986
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Directors and Officers

DIRECTORS
Stanley C. Gault, 74, Director since 1988 (C)
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
The Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company (Akron, Ohio)
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Rubbermaid, Inc. (Wooster, Ohio)

James W. Griffith, 45, Director since 1999
President and Chief Operating Officer
The Timken Company

J. Clayburn La Force, Jr., 71, Director since 1994 (A)
Emeritus Dean and Professor
Anderson Graduate School of Management
University of California at Los Angeles
(Los Angeles, California)

John A. Luke Jr., 51, Director since 1999 (C)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Westvaco Corporation (New York, New York)

Robert W. Mahoney, 63, Director since 1992 (A)
Chairman 
Diebold, Incorporated (Canton, Ohio)



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP
700 William R. Day Building
121 Cleveland Ave., S.
Canton, Ohio 44702-1920

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
The Timken Company is committed to equal 
employment and affirmative action in hiring, training 
and advancement without regard to race, religion, color,
national origin, sex, age, disability or veteran/military
reserve status.

PUBLICATIONS
The Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and 
Proxy Form are mailed to shareholders in March.

The Form 10-K Annual Report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission is available in April, following 
the filing of the report with the commission.

The Form 10-Q Quarterly Report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission is available in May, August and
November, following the filing of the report with the 
commission.

Copies of any of the above may be obtained without
charge upon written request from:

The Timken Company
Shareholder Relations, GNE-04
P.O. Box 6928 
Canton, Ohio 44706-0928

OTHER INFORMATION
Analysts, investors and others seeking financial 
information about the company may contact:

Richard J. Mertes, GNE-04
Manager - Investor Relations
The Timken Company
P. O. Box 6928
Canton, Ohio 44706-0928
Telephone: 330-471-3378

Media representatives and others seeking general 
information about the company should contact:

Michael L. Johnson, GNW-37
The Timken Company
Vice President - Communications
P.O. Box 6932
Canton, Ohio 44706-0932
Telephone: 330-471-3910

You also may visit The Timken Company’s web site 
at www.timken.com.

The Timken Company encourages shareholders’ 
questions and comments.

CORPORATE OFFICES
The Timken Company
1835 Dueber Ave., S.W.
Canton, Ohio 44706-2798
Telephone: 330-438-3000

ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
10 a.m., Tuesday, April 18, 2000, Corporate Offices
Inquiries regarding the meeting should be directed to 
Scott A. Scherff, Corporate Secretary, 
telephone: 330-471-4226.

STOCK LISTING
New York Stock Exchange trading symbol “TKR.’’
Abbreviation used in most newspaper stock listings 
is “Timken.’’

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Dividends on The Timken Company’s common stock 
are generally payable in March, June, September and
December.

The Timken Company Investor Services Program allows
current shareholders and new investors the opportunity 
to purchase shares of The Timken Company’s common
stock directly from the company.

Shareholders of record may increase their investment 
in the company by reinvesting their dividends at no cost.
Shares held in the name of a broker must be transferred
to the shareholder’s name to permit reinvestment.

For more information, direct inquiries to:

The Investor Services Program 
for Shareholders of The Timken Company 
First Chicago Trust Company 
A Division of EquiServe 
P.O. Box 2598 
Jersey City, NJ  07303-2598

Shareholders requesting a change of address or 
information regarding lost certificates or dividend 
checks may contact First Chicago Trust Company at 
1-800-555-9898.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
First Chicago Trust Company of New York
A Division of EquiServe 
P.O. Box 2500
Jersey City, New Jersey 07303-2506

Printed on Recycled Paper

International Advisors and Shareholder Information

INTERNATIONAL ADVISORS

Dr. Carl H. Hahn
Wolfsburg, Germany

The Rt. Hon. Lord Eden of Winton
London, England

Madame Marie-France Garaud
Paris, France
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As The Timken Company 

enters its second century, we

are introducing a new look for

our bearing product packaging.

The new packaging features a

stronger, bolder Timken brand

mark and a contemporary

design.  Capitalizing on the

familiar look of Timken, the

new design continues to 

distinguish our product from

the competition’s and reflects

the company’s growth into

related products and services.

New Packaging Strengthens Timken Brand


